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History and Significant Developments 

Asian Marine Services Public Company, Limited was established in 1981 as a marine survey company with registered 
capital of THB200,000.  The Company later reviewed its original corporate objective in view of the growing demand for ship 
repair services of required standard.  In response to such demand, the Company increased its registered capital to THB 20 
million and purchased its first floating dock, Asimar 1, from Japan.  Then in 1995, the Company purchased its second floating 
dock, Asimar 2, from Germany and increased the registered capital to THB 120 million and THB 170 million respectively.  The 
Company subsequently became listed as a public company limited and changed its name to Asian Marine Services Public 
Company Limited or ASIMAR. 

 
 In 1996, the Company was awarded a government procurement contract to build 3 patrol gunboats for the Royal Thai 

Navy worth THB 808 million.  Moreover, the Companyûs ordinary shares were approved as registered share capital for trading 
in the Stock Exchange of Thailand.  The Company later registered the closing of its branch at Soi Suksawad 49 and moved the 
Asimar 1 floating dock to the same location as Asimar 2 at the Companyûs current headquarters. 

 
 In 2000, the Company was awarded the ISO 9001 version 2000 certification from Lloydûs Register Quality Assurance.  In 

2002, the Company was commissioned to build 2 vessels: the semi-submersible Pattaya Prakarang vessel and the Catamaran 
Passenger Ferry, at the total amount of THB 50 million.  The Company was also awarded a contract by the Royal Thai Police to 
repair and renovate 3 of its large patrol gunboats at the total amount of THB 256 million. 

 
 In addition, the Company also increased registered share capital of THB 119 million through the issuing 3-year warrants 

to existing shareholders for a total of 119 million units.  In 2003, the Company was appointed to construct parts of the steel 
structure and fabrication linking the Concourse Building of Suvarnabhumi Airport for a total amount of THB 159 million and 
replaced Asimar 1 with a new floating dock worth THB 30 million. 

 
 In 2004, the Company established a subsidiary, Asimar Marine Co., Ltd., as an in-house sub-contractor to manage 

skilled-specific works.  This year, the company was able to win contracts to repair the Chulabhorn, a vessel belonging to the 
Department of Fisheries, at THB 42 million; the Naval Dockyard Departmentûs Soopairin ship worth THB 28.5 million; and the 
KALAMINJA MT401 vessel from the Maldives worth THB 42 million. 

 
 In 2005, the Company entered a joint venture with GLOBECO S.p.A. of Italy, one of the worldûs leading companies in 

waterway waste-management, to establish Ecomarine Co., Ltd. (Subsidiary) whose major business focuses on providing 
pollution and waste disposal services in waterways such as water hyacinth, garbage and oil spills, etc. to both public and 
private sector clients in Thailand and in Asia.  The Company builds the vessels used in providing these services. 

 
In 2006, the Company jointly signed a contract with GATI LIMITED of India worth USD13.4 million to build a 442 TEU 

cargo ship and has allocated additional budget for the procurement of various machinery and improvement of its plant area in 
order to develop and increase its potential in the shipbuilding industry to better respond to demands in the domestic and 
international markets. 

 
 In addition, Ecomarine Co., Ltd. purchased the Pelican 25 vessel from Italy to provide services in garbage collection and 

oil film disposal, as well as building 3 waste management vessels.  Ecomarine was contracted by the Provincial Administration 
Organization of Samutprakan and from Tambon Theparak Administration Organization in 2006 to dispose of water hyacinth in 
the area in front of the Samrong Canal water gate.  
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 On 15 March 2006, a total of 50,670,344 units of warrants were exercised for the 13th (and last) time, bringing the 
Companyûs paid capital to THB 234,810,100 from THB 184,139,756 with the number of expired warrants remaining at  
3,189,900 share units at the price of THB 1 per share. 

 
 On 9 May 2006, the Company revised its registered capital in accordance with the resolution of the 2006 Annual 

General Shareholdersû Meeting which noted that upon the expiry date of the warrants, there remained 3,189,900 share units 
still unexercised which made it necessary for the Company to amend its paid capital registration from THB 238,000,000 to THB 
234,810,100 which should also be reflected in Article 4 of the Companyûs prospectus under the heading çRegistered Capitalé. 

 
 
 
Achievements in Shipbuilding, Ship Repair and Engineering 
 In 2007, the Company completed building the structure of a 442 TEU cargo shipfithe largest ever to be commissioned 

in Thailand, for GATI LIMITED of India, which commenced in 2006 and is due to be delivered in 2008.  In addition the 
Company also signed another two contracts: with SERBA PACIFIK SDN.BHD of Malaysia to convert a container ship into an 
offshore operations support vessel; and with ALMANSOORI PRODUCTION SERVICE LLC. of the United Arab Emirates to build 
a petroleum exploration vessel. 

 The Company has started an occupational health and safety standards program and OHSAS 18001accreditation system 
which is currently being developed in accordance to the established guidelines. 

 
 Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. proceeded to decrease its registered capital on 26 January 2007 from the total registered 

capital of THB37.5 million to THB10.0 million and again on 3 August 2007 from THB10.0 million to THB5.0 million. 
 
 In addition, Ecomarine Co., Ltd.was contracted by the Provincial Administration Organization of Ayudhaya Province to 

rehabilitate the waterways of the Chao Phraya River in the province which has been badly polluted and negatively impacting 
on fish farming.  The project is called çA Bright Chao Phraya in Honour of His Majesty the Kingé and involves inspection and 
treatment of the waterways as the river runs through Ayudhaya Province, including disposal of waste, water hyacinth and other 
pests.  The contract signage took place on 30 November 2007 and the project commenced on 1 December 2007 and is due to 
finish on 31 November 2008. 

 
Business overview of the Company and Affiliates 
Major Businesses 
Core business of ASIMAR is in shipbuilding, ship repair and engineering works. The Company is the only leading 

shipyard listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with major shareholders being Tunpaibul Group (SEATRAN), Panitvong 
Group together. The Companyûs productivity in ship repair is about 75 vessels / year, and shipbuilding 500 › 1,000 DWT 
around 3 › 4 vessels / year. The Company also founded a number of subsidiaries to provide high-skilled services for specific 
applications, e.g. GENERAL WAREHOUSE CO., LTD., ASIMAR MARINE CO., LTD. and ECOMARINE CO., LTD. 

 
1. Ship Repair 
The Company is equipped with major facilities for ship repair with the size of vessels ranging from 8,000 DWT. to 

20,000 DWT. These facilities are two U Groove floating docks, to serve both domestic and international demands, together with 
other supporting facilities e.g. warehouse, giant cranes, and high-killed workforces capable of producing high standard outputs. 

 
2. Shipbuilding 
The Company is entrusted by local and international customers to build a variety of special purpose vessels such as 

Naval Patrol Gunboats, Underwater Cable Inspection vessel of Califa Algosibi and Marine Services Co., Ltd., the antipollution 
vessels of Esso Standard (Thailand) Co., Ltd. and Shell (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 

 

Achievements and Major Events in 2007 
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TYPES  SHIP OWNERS 
Pollution Control Vessel 4 vessels  ESSO (Thailand) Public Co., Ltd.,  
  Shell (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Marine Department  
Oil tankers (800 tons) 6 vessels TPI OIL Co., Ltd. 
Diving Support Vessel  1 vessel Khalifa Algosaibi Diving and Marine Services Co., Ltd. 
Patrol Gun Boat 3 vessels Royal Thai Navy 
Catamaran Passenger Ferry 3 vessels Khaolak Enterprise Co., Ltd. 
Passengers Ships 6 vessels Aqua Co., Ltd. / Seatrans Travel Co., Ltd.,  
  Pattaya Pakarang Semi-Submarine Co., Ltd.  
 
3. Ship Conversion 
At present, the ship owners prefer to have their vessels converted in order to save cost and time as opposed to building 

new vessels. Such conversion requires specific knowledge, experience and expertise. Great examples can be witnessed from 
the Companyûs achievements e.g. Reefer from Maldives, the Patrol Gunboats of the Marine Police, and çH.T.M.S. Supairiné of 
the Royal Thai Navy. 

 
4. Engineering Work 
The Company is also capable of fabricating and repairing afloat and offshore constructions, steel work structures for 

bridges, heavy industries, oilrigs as well as factory components. 
 
 
Important Equipments  

1. The two floating docks with the Maximum capacity of 20,000 DWT and 8,000 DWT are as follows; 
 Floating Dock Dimension Lifting Capacity Maximum Vessel Crane 
 Asimar 1 80 x 19.6 m. 5,000 t. 8,000 DWT  
 Asimar 2 161 x 28 m. 8,500 t. 20,000 DWT 2 x 12 t. 
     2 x Dock-knight 

 
2. The shipyard has two separate slipways with 20,000 square meters area for production. 
3.  Several equipments such as large cranes and indoor workshop are available to assist repairing works effectively.  
 
 Type  Amount 

1. CNC (Computer Numerical Control) Cutting Machine 2  set 
2. Gantry Cranes 100-tonne 1  set 
3. Gantry Cranes 10-tonne 3  sets 
4. An  additional blast workshop 1  shop 
5. Dock  knight 2  set 
6. Gantry Cranes 5-tonne 6  set 
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General Service Providing : 
HULL MACHINERY/ TEST 
  ELECTRICAL 

Cleaning Main / Auxiliary engine repair Non-destructive tests (NDT) 
- Sandblasting / Gritblasting Boiler / Condenser repair - Ultrasonic gauging 
- High pressure water jet (800 bar) Propeller - Magnetic particle test 
- Tank and oil cleaning Propulsion shaft - Radiographic test 
- Anchor and chain cleaning Pipe Fitting - Dye penetration test 
- Painting and Coating Electrical / Electronic - Cargo gear load test (up to 350 t.) 
 

 
4. The total working area is approximately 33,280 square metre with 300 meters waterfront and 14 meters water depth 

at the jetty. 
 

Investment in Subsidiaries 
Nature of Business 

 
General Warehouse Co., Ltd. 
The Company is a sole shareholder in General Warehouse Co., Ltd., which renders services in rental of 8,000 m2 

warehouse space and two jetties. 
 
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. 
 Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. conducts business as ship repair contractor to the Company due to growing demand of the 

workforce in the market. The Company has great intention to develop highly skilled workforce to meet the standards set forth 
by Ship Classification Society. 

 
 
Ecomarine Co., Ltd. 
Ecomarine Co., Ltd. is a joint venture between ASIMAR and GLOBELCO S.p.A. from Italy with the shareholding 

structure of 80% and 20% respectively. ECOMARINE is a builder of vessels and renders services in the field of water 
antipollution e.g. debris collection, oil spill recovery, algae and weed harvesting for both private and public sectors. 
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Moreover, GLOBELCO S.p.A. has been continuously supporting ECOMARINE Co., Ltd. in terms of both technology 
transfer and patented ship plans to further develop the industry as well. 

 
 
 
                               

ASIMAR Group structure as of 31 December 2007 

Asian Marine Services PCL. 
Paid up capital 234.8 Million Baht 

Ship repair and Ship building 

General Warehouse Co., Ltd. 
Paid up capital 10 Million Baht  

Warehouse 
99.90% 

Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. 
Paid up capital 5.0 Million Baht 
Sub-contractor in ship repair 

99.90% 

Ecomarine Co., Ltd 
Paid up capital 25.0 Million Baht  
Water pollution control services 

80.00% 

 
ASIMAR AND AFFILIATES INCOME STRUCTURE 

                  (Unit : Thousand Baht) 
 

Revenue categories 2007 2006 2005 
 Amount % Amount % Amount % 
Ship repair 396,200 59.08 400,100 76.45 511,059 89.92 
Ship building 268,000 39.96 105,200 20.10 - - 
Engineering work 200 0.03 7,200 1.37 46,633 8.20 
Other revenues * 6,200 0.92 10,848 2.07 6,674 1.88 
Total 670,600 100.00 523,348 100.00 564,366 100.00 

 
Remark*  Other revenues are interest income, gain from exchange rate, scrap sales, subsidiary companyûs income, etc. 
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Competitive Environment and Industry Trend 
 There has been continuing demand for ship repair operations due to the additional regulatory requirements prescribed 

by the Classification Societies as well as the International Maritime Organization (IMO) which make it necessary for vessels to 
be converted to meet the new requirements, combined with the growing number of ships due to delivery of newly built ships 
in the past year. 

 
 The Companyûs key strategy focused on quality, price and timely delivery of service for the domestic market while in 

the international market, China and Vietnam continued to be important competitors among clients requiring high steel content 
works while clients who require low steel content works but higher end mechanic and technical works turn to Singapore. 

 
 Nevertheless the Company is capable of providing service to clients both in the domestic market and overseas by 

strictly adhering to our policy of quality and timely service together with design and conversion services, especially for clients 
engaged in offshore services which also register continuing growth. 

 
 
 The trend of the industry remains promising with a high demand for vessels such as offshore oil rigs, container ships, 

oil tankers, etc. Therefore, shipyards in foreign countries especially Japan, Korea and China are already operating at full 
capacity to complete orders up to the year 2012 as a consequence of continuing growth in international trade, with China and 
India being the main markets in the Asian region.  Another factor which further influences the trend is the demand for the 
building of new ships to replace those that have exceeded 30 years of service.  The Government is comprehensively pushing 
forward the development of the shipbuilding and ship repair industry with short-term, intermediate and long-term work plans 
as well as the inclusion of the industry in its 10th National Economic and Social Development Plan (2007-2011) regarding 
reduction of transport and logistics costs in order to increase competitiveness and raise manufacturing productivity.  This 
reflects the Governmentûs awareness of the importance of developing maritime transport capabilities as a means to reduce 
logistics costs at the national level. 

 
 
Future Projects 
With the expansion of the shipbuilding industry, as well as demands in terms of offshore infrastructure engineering 

works and increasing collaboration and alliances with shipyards in foreign countries, the Company has enhanced development 
of design capability, technological expertise and Supply Chain Management in order to lessen loss in terms of logistics and 
strengthen its database for knowledge base and training systems.  In the next 5 years, the Company has set its investment 
budget for this work plan as follows: 

 
In 2008 
ë Develop the ship repair management system to improve control over man hours/standard time on dock and     
 production costs 
ë Develop its subsidiary, Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. by developing the standards of its skilled workers in order to   
 significantly support the Companyûs operations 
ë Improve internal plant1traffic management and supply chain management systems, including resident contractor   
 procurement 
ë Integrated development of the organization and capacity building of its employees 
 
 In 2009 
ë Build a business unit to be responsible for offshore construction engineering 
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 In 2010 
ë Planned expansion of floating docks in response to increasing domestic and international market demands 
ë Create a market network for large ship repair works/new floating dock 
 
General Information 
Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited 
Head Office: 599/1 Rimtangrotfai Chongnonsri Road, Klong Toey District, Bangkok 10110 
Plant Location: 128 Moo 3 Suksawad Rd., Prasamutjedee, Samutprakarn      10290 Thailand 
Type of Business: Ship Repair and Ship Building   Register No. 0107538000785              
Tel: (662) 0-2815-2060-7   Fax: (662) 0-2453-7213  Home Page: www.asimar.com   
Paid up Capital: Baht 234,810,100  
 
Juristic person, which the company holds more than 10% of the issued shares 
 
General Warehouse Company Limited    
 Head Office: 599/1 Rimtangrotfai Chongnonsri Rd., Klong-toey, Bangkok 10110, Thailand      
Plant Location: 128 Moo 3 Suksawad Rd., Prasamutjedee, Samutprakarn 10290, Thailand      
Type of Business: Warehouse and Port   
Tel: (662) 0-2815-2060-7   Fax: (662) 0-2453-7214 
Paid-up Capital: Baht 10,000,000  

 
Asimar Marine Company Limited    
Head Office: 599/1 Rimtangrotfai Chongnonsri Rd., Klong-toey, Bangkok 10110, Thailand      
Plant Location: 128 Moo 3 Suksawad Rd., Prasamutjedee, Samutprakarn 10290, Thailand      
Type of Business: Ship repair  subcontractor  to Asian Marine Services PLC. 
Tel: (662) 0-2815-2060-7   Fax: (662) 0-2453-7214 
Paid-up Capital: Baht 5,000,000  
 
Ecomarine Company Limited    
Head Office and plant Location:  128 Moo 3 Suksawad Rd., Prasamutjedee, Samutprakarn   10290, Thailand      
Type of Business: Water pollution control service 
Tel: (662) 0-2815-2060-7   Fax: (662) 0-2453-721   www.ecomarine.com 
Paid-up Capital: Baht 25,000,000  
 
Other reference persons 
Share Registrar : Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 
  2/7 Moo 4  North Park , Vibhavadi Rangsit Road 
  Thung Song Hong , Laksi , Bangkok , Thailand 
  Tel: (662)  02-596-9000  
 
Auditor  :  Dharmniti Auditing Co., Ltd. 
  267/1 Pracharaj Sai 1 Road,Bangsue, Bangkok, Thailand 
  Tel: (662) 02-587-8080  
  Mr. Pojana     Asawasontichai 
  Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4891 
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 Internal Auditor : Srilerk Limited Partnership 
  232/1 Soi Chaengwattana 6 , Chaengwattana Rd., 
  Bangkhen Talad, Laksi , Bangkok. 
  Tel: (662) 02-973-4908 
 
Legal Office : JTJB ADVOCATES & SOLICITORS  
  5 Shenton Way #35-01 UIC Building 
  Singapore 
  Tel: 65 6220 9388 
 
 : Legal Advisory Council Co.,Ltd.  
  16 th Floor, Olympia Thai Tower 
  444 Ratchadapisek Rd., Huay Kwang, Bankok  Thailand 
  Tel: (662) 512-6090 
 
 
RISK FACTORS 
1. Risk associated with Business uncertainty 
This risk is from the uncertainty of income which are depend on Number of repaired ship and Value. However, it does 

not affect the Company because the substantial ship conversion service and ship building from International market can cover 
the expected production. Moreover, The risk cause from delay delivery of new shipbuilding while The Company set up the 
project plan to accelerate on time delivery. 

 
2. Risk associated with lack of workforces 
The Company requires more high-skilled workforces and technician for shipbuilding and ship repair. Therefore, the 

Company has policies to motivate the employee by emphasizing remuneration, benefits, rewards, and training for further 
knowledge. In return, the employees will contribute to the Company. In addition, the Company joins the Vocational College to 
outline the bilateral courses so that the employees increase their abilities. This is an extra potential for the employees and the 
Company is confident that more qualified workforces will be available. 

 
3. Risk associated with land lease contract renewal 
The Company is located on the land that our subsidiary company has subleased from the Federation of Agricultural 

Cooperative of Thailand Limited. The Sub-Lessor can also terminate the contract according to normal conditions between 
government and private sectors. But The Company has good relationship with the Sub-Lessor and it has a high chance to 
renew the contract. In case, the contract is terminated, the Company is able to relocate the floating docks, the major assets. 

 
4. Risks associated with Exchange Rate Volatility 
The production cost is considerately dependent on exchange rate because the imported machinery with high value 

mainly came from overseas. The Company controls the Foreign Exchange risk by entering into a forward contract. 
 
5. Risks associated with Production Cost  
During the year, prices of several categories of material rose significantly. A prominent influence was the increase in 

global oil prices. Material used in the business is steel plate, machinery, paint, pipe, valve and welding wires. The Company 
limits the risk by escalating the service tariff in some items, which are directly related to oil price. 
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6. Risks associated with Liquidity 
 In case, the customers cannot follow their commitments. The Company will limit the risk by having the customers to 

settle payment as much as possible before shipsû departure. 
 
7. Risks associated with Accidents 
 The Company has placed the all-risk insurance policy covering the risks for constructions, machinery, stocks and the 

loss or damage of ship hull in building or repairing process. Additionally, the Company has 2 floating docks under this policy 
with the insured value of THB 328 million. 

 
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND EXECUTIVES 
1. List of Major Shareholders as of April 3, 2007 (latest registrar closing date) 
 

 Name As of April 3, 2007 
  Number of shares % 
 1. Tanpaibul Group 42,213,900 17.98 
 2. Panitvong Group 24,941,076 10.62 
 3. Mr.Prawat  Chanruang 7,425,233 3.16 
 4. Mr.Rungroj Rungmuangthong 5,527,700 2.35 
 5. Mr. Somsak    Dechtipakorn 4,233,700 1.80 
 6. Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 4,115,200 1.75 
 7. Mr. Marnie      Chaisuksawad 3,054,300 1.30 
 8. Mr. Vichai       Tanasamut 2,834,200 1.21 
 9. Mr.Siravate     Sukhanetr 2,820,100 1.20 
 10. Mr. Surapan  Pattanapitoon 2,801,200 1.19 

 Total 99,966,609 42.57 
 
Source : Share Distribution Report, Thailand Securities Depositary Co.,Ltd. 
 
 
2.  Dividend Policy  
 
Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited : The Company has the policy to pay dividend not less than 40 % of its 

net profit of each fiscal year after reserving as required by laws and loss carried forward (if any) for dividend payment. 
However, the actual dividend payment depends on cash flow, investment plan of the Company and its subsidiaries, terms and 
conditions of the agreements entered by the Company together with all other necessity and suitability in the future. 

 
Subsidiaries : The Companyûs subsidiaries have the policy to pay dividend not less than 60 % of its net profit of each 

fiscal year after reserving as required by laws and loss carried forward (if any) for dividend payment. However, the actual 
dividend payment depends on cash flow, investment plan of the Company and its subsidiaries, terms and conditions of the 
agreements entered by the Company together with all other necessity and suitability in the future. 
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 Management and Corporate Governance 
1. Management Structure 
The company has three sets of committees; the Board of Directors, the Board of Executive Directors and the Audit 

Committee. 
 

 Board of Directors 
 1. Mr.Prakit Pradipasen Chairman and Independent Director 
 2. Mr.Sutham  Tanpaibul Director and Chairman of Executive Board                                                                            
 3. Mr.Vibul  Panitvong Director and Executive Director 
 4. Mr.Prawat  Chanruang Director 
 5. Mrs.Warawan Nganthavee Managing Director, Director and Executive Director 
 6. Mr.Sutep  Tanpaibul Director and Executive Director 
 7. Mr.Nonn  Panitvong Director and Executive Director 
 8. Mr.Suthin  Tanphaibul Director, and Executive Director 
 9. Mrs.Wannaporn  Viravan  Independent Director and Chairperson of Audit Committee 
 10. Mr.Sribhumi  Sukhanetr Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 
 11. Mr.Bumroong Chinda Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 
 

Board Secretary  
Mr. Auychai Tivirach 
 
Authorized directors 
  The authorized directors are Mr.Prakit Pradipasen, Mr.Sutham Tanpaibul, Mr.Sutep Tanpaibul, Mr.Suthin Tanphaibul, 

Mr.Vibul Panitvong and Ms.Warawan Nganthavee. The two directors from six, co-sign with the company seal. 
 
Board of Directorsû duties and responsibilities 
 The board has the authority and the responsibility to manage the Company in compliance with the laws, the objectives 

and articles of association of the company and the shareholdersû resolution. 
The board may appoint a number of directors or other people to oversee any activities on behalf of the board within the 

board supervision or to be an authority by the board, as it deems appropriate. The board can also cancel or change that 
authority. 

 However, the mentioned authority is excluded of the authority in making the connected transaction according to SET 
regulation. 

 
Board of Executive Directors consists of 

 1. Mr.Suthum  Tanpaibul Chairman of the Executive Board 
 2. Mr.Sutep  Tanpaibul Executive Director 
 3. Mr.Sutin  Tanphaibul Executive Director 
 4. Mr.Vibul  Panitvong Executive Director 
 5. Mrs. Warawan  Nganthavee Executive Director 
 6. Mr.Nonn  Panitvong Executive Director 
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Board of Executive Directorsû duties and responsibilities 
1.  To work with the management team for considering and analyzing master plan of the Company, business objective, 

strategic plan, financial plan and budgeting, including important policies, to present to the Directors of the Company for their 
agreement and approval. 

2.  To analyze operating plan and supervise the work of the Companyûs executives to be according to the plan and 
achieve the objective efficiently, with quality and standard in the right direction, by setting up and monitoring key performance 
index. 

3. To give advice on the matters requested from the management team. 
4.  To supervise the company in risk management, and contingency plan to cope with critical situations, including 

supervising concerned personnel in practicing and revising such plan to be valid at all time. 
5.  To supervise the company to follow the regulations of the Securities Exchange of Thailand and other applicable laws. 
6.  To review the internal investigation, or arrange investigation when there are any suspicions of fraud or misconducts, 

or make any corrections that might inflict significant damage and inform the board of directors for further consideration. 
7.  To consider and/or suggest the management team regarding the matters those are important to the company, such 

as personnel management, information technology, marketing, production, etc. 
8.  To appoint and/or supervise the sub-committees, advisors, and working group who are in charge of works assigned 

by the directors of the company and/or executive committee. 
9.  Executive Committee has authority to call executives or concerned personnel to give statement or useful information, 

or attend meetings as well as inviting lawyers, auditors, or executives to attend the board of executive directorsû meeting. 
10. To conduct any mission assigned by the board of directors.  
 
 The authority of Board of Executive Directors does not include the related transactions, or the transactions concerning 

acquisition or sale of assets of the Company or Subsidiaries according to the definitions set up by the Announcement of the 
Securities Exchange of Thailand. 

 
  
Audit Committee 
The audit committee consists of  
1. Mrs.Wannaporn Viravan Chairperson of Audit Committee with finance and  accounting  background 
2. Mr.Sribhumi  Sukhanetr Member of Audit Committee with finance and  accounting  background 
3. Mr.Bumroong  Chinda Member of Audit Committee with finance and  accounting  background 
 
Audit Committees  Secretary 
Ms. Patchara Assarattananon 
 
Audit Committeesû functions and responsibilities 
1.  To review and ensure that the process of making and disclosure of Companyûs financial report with accuracy and 

reliability. 
2. To ensure that internal audit system is appropriate and effective. 
3. To guard against conflicts of interest. 
4.  To ascertain that the Company complies with rules and Regulations imposed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

(SET) and other applicable laws. 
5.  To review the internal investigation if there is suspicion of fraud or significant impairment of internal control system 

and reporting to the Board of Directors for further consideration. 
6.  To consider and review the evidence if there is the suspicion of violation of laws or SECûs rules. 
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 7. To review the annual auditing plan proposed by Internal Audit. 
8.  To consider the audit results and recommendations from both internal and external auditor and follow up the 

company correction. 
 9. To suggest the external auditor to revise the significant accounting transactions 
10.  To propose the auditor appointment, annual auditing fee to the Board of Directors and to Shareholdersû Meeting. 
11.  To prepare the audit committee report signed by chairman of the audit committee and published in the companyûs 

Annual Report. 
12.  To invite the management, supervisor, lawyer, external auditor and internal auditor to provide information or attend 

a meeting as appropriate and necessary. 
13. To perform other missions indicated or assigned by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
Nominating and Remuneration Committee 
The Nominating and Remuneration committee consists of  
1. Mr. Sribhumi Sukhanetr Chairman of  Nominating and Remuneration Committee Non-Executive Director and  

   Independent Director 
2. Mr. Vibul  Panitvong Member of  Nominating and Remuneration Committee 
3. Mr. Prawat  Chanruang Member of  Nominating and Remuneration Committee Non-Executive Director and   

  Independent Director 
 
 
Nominating Committee duties and responsibilities 
1.  Select, seek, set plans for succession to appointed positions of qualified persons eligible to be nominated as members 

of the Board of Directors or as Managing Director through a standard and transparent selection process, including consideration 
of nominations (if any) made by the advice of shareholders. 

 
Nominated candidates must be knowledgeable, capable, independent; possess the ability to execute their office with 

adherence to duty of care and duty of loyalty; possess the ability to devote their full time and energy; be of proper age, good 
health both physically and mentally, and capable of regularly attending meetings of the Selection Committee.  Committee 
members must be well prepared before each meeting, participate constructively in the meetings, daring to express their views 
in an open and straightforward manner, and/or be a business operator of high repute whose record and integrity is well 
accepted in society. 

 
The Selection Committee will place emphasis on a candidateûs expertise, experience, professional credentials and 

specific qualifications which would significantly contribute to the Companyûs business operations so that the composition of 
the Companyûs Board of Directors serves the Companyûs best interest.  In addition, a candidateûs concurrent membership on 
the boards of many different companies will also be taken into consideration to ascertain whether this might have any adverse 
impact on the Company, including any possibility of conflict of interest.  This issue applies to both the case of Company 
Directors as well as the Managing Director. 

 
2.  Prepare in advance a list of potential candidates eligible to be nominated to the Board of Directors or to the position 

of Managing Director and/or in the case where there a position is vacated. 
 



89

3.  Seek the views and opinions of the Board of Directors and/or the Managing Director (in the event that there are 
views/opinions) and consider them in the selection process prior to making recommendations to the Board of Directors or to 
the shareholdersû Assembly for consideration whichever the case may be. 

 
4. Set the performance appraisal process for the Companyûs Board of Directors, sub-committees and Managing Director 

and submit these guidelines to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. 
 
5. Consider lists of nominees comprising candidates with appropriate qualifications to serve on the Companyûs sub-

committees for submission to the Board of Directors for appointment when there is a vacancy. 
 
6. Conduct any other mission as assigned by the Board of Directors and the Managing Director. 
 
In carrying out any assignment as prescribed in this article, the Selection Committee may, the Companyûs cost, seek 

independent views from other professional consultants as deemed necessary, including seeking appropriate training and 
capacity building on specific issues pertinent to the Selection Committeeûs mission.   

 
The Selection Committee is directly responsible to the Board of Directors for the execution of its office, and to the 

public for the Companyûs business operations. 
 
 
Remuneration Committee duties and responsibilities 
1.  Review the Companyûs remuneration strategies and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for endorsement 

and implementation in setting out incentives for employees, based on both short-term and long-term operational outcomes. 
 
2.  Make recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer and the Managing Director regarding consideration of salaries 

and benefits for the Companyûs senior executives. 
 
3.  Examine and make recommendations regarding the Companyûs remuneration policy and practice which are designed 

to provide incentive and help retain those employees with high capabilities and potential. 
 
4.  Assist in formulating an effective system for the Companyûs Board of Directors to assess the capability and conduct 

performance appraisals of the Chief Executive Officer and the Managing Director in accordance with the objectives and targets 
of the Companyûs business operations. 

 
5.  Prescribe then tenure and conditions of employment, including remuneration,  for the Chief Executive officer, 

Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director and comparable office bearers in subsidiary companies. 
 
6.  Review the remuneration package for Company directors in accordance with their responsibilities vis-a-vis other 

comparable companies and in line with Company guidelines for submission to the shareholdersû meeting for approval. 
 
7.  Review the annual performance of the Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director and 

comparable office bearers in subsidiary companies at least once a year using the Companyûs performance appraisal form, taking 
into consideration the observation and assessment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors. 
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 Management 
1. Mrs. Warawan Nganthavee Managing Director 
2. Mr. Thani  Narux Production Senior Department Manager 
3. Mrs. Luckana Srisod Finance and Accounting Department Manager 
4. Mr. Seksun  Pranamornkij         Human Resource and Administration Department Manager 
5. Mr. Dayanan  Tivari Marketing  Department Manager 
6. Ms. Benjawan  Tanpaibul  Material Service Department Manager 
 
Managing Directorûs duties and responsibilities 
1.  To manage the business of the Company to be according to the objective and policies assigned by the Board of 

Directors. 
2.  To approve for the appointment, dismissal, command disciplinary punishment, discharge, promotion of working level, 

promotion of position, move, or reduce salary of the employee. 
3. To approve the payments and/or enter into the debt obligations that related to the approval projects by the Board of 

Directors, to the normal business operation as stipulated in the annual budget by the Board of Directors or other transactions 
that are pre-approved by the Board of Directors. 

4. The authority for approval of Managing Directorûs authority does not include the related transactions, or the 
transactions concerning acquisition or sale of assets of the Company according to the criteria set by the Securities Exchange of 
Thailand. 

 
Nominating of Directors 
Appointment of Directors of the Company 
 
The Company does not make the selection for personnel to be appointed the Directors through the Selection 

Committee, but apply the following criteria instead: 
1. The number of Directors not less than 5 persons, and not less than half of total number of Directors must have 

residence in the kingdom. 
2. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. 
3. In the election of directors, the meeting of shareholders may vote for one candidate at a time, or a group of 

candidates or any other methods, as it deems appropriate. The directors shall be appointed by a majority vote. In case of equal 
votes, the chairman of the meeting shall cast a deciding vote. 

 In every annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall retire from office. If the number to retire from office is 
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third shall be applied. A director who retires under this provision is 
eligible for reappointment. 
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Good Corporate Governance 
 
Section 1 : Rights of Shareholders 
 The Company applies the principle of good governance in its policy and guidelines pertaining to rights of shareholders 

as follows:  
 
 The Company respects the basic rights of shareholders and strictly safeguards those rights through provision of 

accurate, comprehensive and appropriate information, including support for shareholders to exercise their rights in attending 
and voting in the shareholdersû meeting, and refraining from any action which may violate or undermine shareholdersû rights in 
accordance with the policy approved by the Board of Directors on 4 December 2007. 

 
Shareholders Meeting 
 The Company is required to disseminate notice of the meeting to shareholders, along with documentation of 

authorization which will allow shareholders to delegate an independent director to represent them as a proxy.  Notice of the 
meeting will specify the date, time, venue, agenda and matters to be proposed to the meeting, together with sufficient details 
as to whether the matter is submitted for information or for consideration whichever the case may be.  Also included would be 
the Boardûs recommendation on the said matter.  This meeting package shall be sent to all shareholders and the registrar no 
later than 7 days prior to the date of the meeting, as well as posted on the Companyûs website in advance of distribution of 
the package.  Minority shareholders may propose qualified persons as candidates for committee membership, as well as 
propose motions to put matters on the agenda via the website.  It is the Companyûs policy to accommodate shareholders and 
allocate sufficient time as well as provide adequate opportunity and convenience for shareholders to pose questions and 
express their views, with Members of the Board of Directors and relevant executives being required to be present to respond to 
questions in the meeting.  Important questions and comments shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and posted on 
the Companyûs website within 14 days following the date of the meeting to allow shareholders to examine the record without 
having to wait until the next general meeting. 

 
- The Company held its 2007 annual general shareholders meeting on 24 April 2007 which was attended by 9 of the 

total of 11 members of the Board of Directors , including the Chairman, Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the Managing 
Director, the Chief Financial Officer, as well as the auditor. 

-  The Company sent out notice of the meeting package and the minutes of the last meeting to shareholders 7 days in 
advance of the meeting date. 

-  The notice of the meeting was also posted on the Company website www.asimar.com/ Investor Relations 30 days 
prior to the meeting date, while the Minutes of the 2006 Shareholders Meeting was posted on the website 14 days prior to the 
meeting date. 

 
For shareholders who found it inconvenient to attend the meeting in person, The Company suggested that they 

authorize one of the two Independent Director: Mrs Wannaporn Viravan and Mr Bamroong Chinda to represent them and vote 
on their behalf.  However, in the 2007 General Shareholders Meeting, none of the shareholders elected to delegate either 
Independent Director as their proxy.  

 
 The Company remains devoted to produce continuing growth to ensure shareholders receive dividends well worth their 

investment.  It is the Companyûs policy to pay out as dividend no less than 40% of the net profit in the financial statement of 
specific business in each account cycle less statutory reserve and retained loss (if any). 
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 Matters not yet implemented : 
1.  The Company did not provide information in the Notice of Meeting package regarding a) Guidelines and Selection 

Process (for the election of new directors) due to the fact that the current Nominating and Remuneration Committee was only 
appointed to office in 2006; and b) the Policy and Guidelines pertaining to Remuneration of Directors due to the fact that in 
previous years, remuneration has been set at a fixed figure with no bonus or meeting allowances. 

 
2.  The Company did not set a date to allow shareholders to send in questions on matters on the agenda to the Board of 

Directors prior to the meeting date; however, in the 2007 Annual Shareholders Meeting, the Chairman informed shareholders to 
submit their questions before the start of the meeting. 

 
Section 2 : Equity of Shareholders 
 The Company is well aware of shareholdersû importance and has a policy to treat all shareholders equitably, fairly and 

in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.  Shareholders may exercise their right to protect their own interests by 
expressing their views, making recommendations and voting in shareholders meetings. Moreover, shareholders are entitled to 
participate in key decisions for change in accordance with Company regulations (which are enclosed with the Notice of 
Meeting Package for the 2008 Annual General Shareholders Meeting) including in the election of Company Directorsfione or 
many at a time depending on the resolution of the Meeting, in approving remuneration of Directors (details of which are 
provided in Section 4 : Information Disclosure and Transparency) and approving connected business transactions, and in 
receiving accurate, complete and transparent information which can be examined and audited.  The Company also provides the 
opportunity to shareholders to submit any questions they may have prior to the date of the shareholders meeting, and 
stipulates that the Directors and Executives must disclose their share holdings as required by law. 

 
 The Company has formalized its policy to prevent exploitation of insider information and this has been disseminated 

widely to employees, management and Company directors. 
 
 The Company has set specific measures and guidelines to ensure that its Directors and Management do not use insider 

information to buy or sell shares or engage in other unlawful transactions for their own interests as follows: 
 
-  Company Directors and employees shall strictly adhere to and comply with provisions of the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand (SET) and the Stock Exchange Commission (SEC) and other relevant legislation, which also pertain to equitable 
disclosure of information to shareholders and/or the general public. 

-  Company Directors, Management and employees shall safeguard important confidential information, especially the 
Companyûs financial statement, that could influence investor decision so that it is not leaked before being submitted to the SET 
and SEC. 

 
On 24 November 2006, the Company publicized a letter to shareholders through the SET system calling for minority 

shareholders to submit questions, nominate qualified persons to be selected Directors, as well as propose matters to be 
included on the agenda via the Companyûs website.  The terms and conditions governing consideration of matters for inclusion 
in the agenda were provided on the website and the period for submission of motions was from 24 November 2006 to 31 
January 2007.  However, after the expiration of the said period, the Company did not receive any nomination of any candidates 
for Company director nor any motion to add matters to the agenda of the meeting. 
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Section 3 : Role of Stakeholders 

1. Policy and Best Practice toward Employees 
The Company places great emphasis on its human resources and adopted a work culture of participation, equitable 

promotion of career advancement, regular and continual training and development, as well as the importance of observing 
workplace health and safety measures and maintaining good environmental quality.  This work culture has instilled a strong 
sense of pride in the organization and this is reflected in such initiatives as establishing a Workers Provident Fund, setting up a 
medical welfare scheme (in addition to Social Welfare entitlements), creating the Asian Marine Services Employeesû Savings 
Cooperatives, organizing a bilateral vocational training course in collaboration with the Phra Samut Chedi Technical College, 
granting scholarships to employeesû children who get the school-record, providing annual medical check ups for staff, providing 
transport to employees to and from work, appointing a staff relations committee to look after staff welfare, and providing a 
channel for communication so that staff have the opportunity to make suggestions or complaints via a comments and 
suggestions box.  In addition, an Occupational Health and Safety Committee has also been set up to handle workplace health 
and safety issues for staff, the systemûs standard of which was developed in 2007 with the aim to achieve OHSAS 18001 
accreditation. 

2. Policy and Best Practice toward Shareholders 

The Company fully respects and strictly protects the basic rights of its shareholders by providing them with 
comprehensive and appropriate information, support for their participation in attending and exercising their vote in the 
shareholders meeting as well as refraining from any action which may violate or infringe on shareholdersû rights. 

The Company is fully committed to achieving further growth based on its growing potential so that shareholders will 
receive worthwhile return on their investment.  It is the Company has the policy to pay dividend not less than 40 % of its net 
profit of each fiscal year after reserving as required by laws and loss carried forward (if any) for dividend payment. However, 
the actual dividend payment depends on cash flow, investment plan of the Company and its subsidiaries, terms and conditions 
of the agreements entered by the Company together with all other necessity and suitability in the future, and the Companyûs 
subsidiaries have the policy to pay dividend not less than 60 % of its net profit of each fiscal year after reserving as required 
by laws and loss carried forward (if any) for dividend payment. However, the actual dividend payment depends on cash flow, 
investment plan of the Company and its subsidiaries, terms and conditions of the agreements entered by the Company 
together with all other necessity and suitability in the future. 

3. Policy and Best Practice toward Clients 
The Company places emphasis on doing business in a fair and forthright manner, providing quality service and ensuring 

customer satisfaction by developing a questionnaire to evaluate customer satisfaction for each vessel that we are commissioned 
to build or repair.  Clients also have the option to file complaints through the Managing Directorûs Bureau.  The Company has 
a meeting to consider and analyze clientsû satisfaction ratings at least once a month. 

4. Policy and Best Practice toward Partners and Creditors  
The Company is determined to ensure a high standard of management of its goods and services in order to preserve 

lasting relations with its trading partners.  Therefore, it has established as its policy and best practice toward trading partners, 
a set of guidelines under the heading çConflict of Interesté which, in summary, provides that the Companyûs trading partners 
will enable to participate equally in a bid or tender or disadvantaged through the setting of discriminate specifications in order 
to maintain equitable and fair competition.  The Company prohibits its employees at every level from demanding benefits, 
whether directly or indirectly, from trading partners, accepting gifts or prizes, including inappropriate or excessive services and 
hospitality.  The Company clearly informs its trading partners of these conditions, whether they be contractors or vendors and 
also stamps this policy on each procurement form used domestically. 

In 2007 the Company did not find any trading partner or employee who contravened this policy. 
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5. Policy and Best Practice toward Society/the Community 
The Company believes that social responsibility and responsible management of the environment is an important part of 

doing business. It has, therefore, formulated a Social and Environmental Policy Statement as a guideline for its executives and 
employees so that they are protected from possible adverse effects to themselves, associates, as well as the community and 
the environment, in compliance with the relevant laws relating to environmental protection and management of natural 
resources. The Company also continually develops the implementation of programs based on social responsibility and 
responsible management of the environment principles. 

 
The Company is strongly in favor and supportive of creating and developing good relations with the community where 

it is located in all areas such as contributing to various activities which benefit the community, or promoting education among 
youths, etc. Managers are required to publicize this policy so that employees are well aware of it.  They must also provide 
sufficient resources to carry out worthwhile activities, organize appropriate training for employees at all levels so that they 
develop the ability to carry out their duty and responsibility in this regard, as well as periodically reviewing and evaluating 
both the policy and its management to ensure that objectives are met. 

 
In 2007, the Company participated in taking care of the community in its surroundings by doing the following: 
 
-  On 15 May 2007, joined in improving the playground at Pom Phra Chulachomklao School which is a local school 

situated about 1 kilometer from the Company which teaches Grades 1-9 so that students will have a 5 x 20 meter fully›
equipped playground for recreation, exercise and physical development.  The Company and employees also donated books and 
other equipment to the schoolûs library. 

-  Built a training workshop for Phra Samut Chedi Technical College with whom the Company has been collaborating for 
the third year in a bilateral program to allow its employees to complete a vocational diploma in welding and mechanics. 

-  Participated in Childrenûs Day celebrations by donating gifts and prizes to three schools in the Phra Samut Chedi 
District namely the Pom Phra Chulachomklao School, Sakhla Temple School and Traimitvararam Temple School. 

 
In addition, the Company also provided a total of 17 scholarships to its employeesû children amounting to THB 62,000 

for children ranging from primary school to university, with the Company providing funding and equipment to sponsored 
students on a continuing basis in order to really support the students in their studies. 

 
6. Policy and Best Practice toward the Environment 
Emphasis is placed on creating a pleasant work environment by organizing a workplace setting that is clean, attractive 

and green. A most important feature for both the workplace interior and the surrounding community is the issue of health and 
safety so that happy coexistence between the organization and the community is attained. 

 
In order to promote confidence in the Companyûs safe and healthy environmental standards, it has established a 

channel of communication whereby incidents can be reported or complaints lodged both in and out of work hours (24 hours) 
which is part of the Companyûs early detection measure to guard against any possible adverse environmental impact on the 
neighboring community. 

 
Channels are also provided for shareholders and stakeholders to contact/make complaints to the Companyûs Board of 

Directors regarding matters which may pose a problem and provide constructive advice via the following: 
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- electronic mail directors@asimar.com 
- post The Board of Directors (Secretary of the Board) 
 Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited 
 128 Moo 3 Suksawad Road 
 Laemfapha Sub-district, Prasamutjedee District 
 Samut Prakan 10290 
 
 The Secretary to the Board of Directors is responsible for receiving the documentation and submitting it to the relevant 

Committee, i.e. requests/complaints regarding accounting and financial reports, internal auditing, risk management, legal 
compliance will be directed to the Audit Committee, and the Secretary will prepare briefing on all the issues (relating to such 
requests/complaints) for the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. 

 
Section 4 : Information Disclosure and Transparency 
The Board is fully aware that information regarding every aspect of the Company has an impact on the decision of 

investors and stakeholders. It is, therefore, the Companyûs policy to disclose, both its financial and non-financial information, in 
a comprehensive, accurate, credible and timely manner in both Thai and English. Information disclosure is done via the SET 
Community Portal of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and via the Companyûs website (www.asimar.com) with the Managing 
Director or a delegate of the Managing Director assigned to conduct the disclosure. The Company has set up an Investor 
Relations Unit responsible for contacting and communicating with institutional investors, shareholders, including analysts and 
relevant public sector agencies in an equal and fair manner. In cases where a shareholder requires further information, it is 
possible to directly contact of the Investor Relations Unit the Finance and Accounting Department at telephone 02-815-2060 
extension 2816 and 2819 or e-mail to fid@asimar.com. The Company has developed mechanisms to allow stakeholders to 
participate in contributing to its higher performance through transparent information disclosure. 

 
  Details                            Reference in the 2007 Annual Report 
 4.1 Shareholdersû Structure Shareholdersû Structure 
 4.2 Background and information regarding  Background on the Board of Directors 
      share holdings by Directors  
 4.3 Background and information regarding  Background in the Board of Executive Directors 
     share holdings by Executives  
 4.4 Financial position and operating results The Companyûs Performance in 2007 and  
  Financial Statements 
 4.5 Nature of business and competition Major Businesses, Competitive Environment and  
  Industry Trend 
 4.6 Risks in business operations Risk Factors 
 4.7 Connected business transactions Connected Transactions 

 4.8 Policy and Guidelines on Remuneration for Directors 
The Company has formulated a reasonable remuneration policy for Directors and Executives, with the Selection and 

Remuneration Committee in charge of reviewing and prescribing appropriate rates of remuneration suited to the directorûs 
responsibilities and the Companyûs financial standing. 
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The Companyûs guidelines on remuneration for Directors are as follows: 
 
ë Remuneration for Directors are on an annual basis with no meeting allowance or bonus; 
ë Directors who are appointed to smaller committees will receive additional remuneration in accordance to their added 

responsibilities. 
4.9  Remuneration for Directors and the Management 
Remuneration to Directors for the Year 2007 

Unit : Baht 
 Name  Directors  Audit   Nominating and  
   Committee Committee Remuneration Committee 
 1. Mr.Prakit Pradipasen 240,000 - - 
 2. Mr.Sutham Tanpaibul 150,000 - - 
 3. Mr.Vibul Panitvong 150,000 - 60,000 
 4.  Mr.Prawat Chanruang 150,000 - 60,000 
 5.  Mrs.Warawan Nganthavee  150,000 - - 
 6.  Mr.Sutep Tanpaibul 150,000 - - 
 7.  Mr.Nonn Panitvong 150,000 - - 
 8.  Mr.Suthin Tanphaibul 150,000 - - 
 9.  Mrs.Wannaporn Viravan 150,000 150,000 - 
 10. Mr.Sribhumi  Sukhanetr 150,000 120,000 60,000 
 11. Mr.Bumroong Chinda 150,000 120,000 - 

 
1. Total Annual Director Fee and Audit Committee for 11 directors Baht 2.31 Million 
2. Total Remuneration for 11 managements is Baht 10.42 Million and Executives who were provident fund members 

received contributions at the rate of 5 percent 
 
4.10   Board of Directorsû Meeting 
 Board meetings are scheduled in advance for setting the companyûs policy and business strategies including approval of 

the companyûs operations, annual budget and performance. Monitoring the companyûs operating performance is confirmed a 
routine procedure of the meetings.  There was 4 ordinary meetings , Audit Committee 4 ordinary meetings and Nominating 
and Remuneration Committee  1  ordinary meetings  in 2007, each directorûs attendance in these meetings are as follows: 

 
Name Directors  Audit Nominating and  
 Committee Committee Remuneration Committee 
1.  Mr.Prakit  Pradipasen 4/4 - - 
2.  Mr.Sutham Tanpaibul 4/4 - - 
3.   Mr.Vibul  Panitvong 4/4 - 1/1 
4.   Mr.Prawat  Chanruang 4/4 - 1/1 
5.   Mrs.Warawan Nganthavee  4/4 - - 
6.   Mr.Sutep  Tanpaibul 4/4 - - 
7.   Mr.Nonn Panitvong 4/4 - - 
8.  Mr.Suthin Tanphaibul 4/4 - - 
9.   Mrs.Wannaporn Viravan 4/4 4/4 - 
10. Mr.Sribhumi Sukhanetr 3/4 3/4 1/1 
11.  Mr.Bumroong Chinda 4/4 4/4 - 



97

 4.11  The Company has provided a policy that Directors and Executives, including their spouses and their children not of 
legal age, who buy, sell, transfer, or receive transferred company shares, have a responsibility to report such transaction to the 
Stock Exchange Commission (SEC) within 3 days in compliance with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. 

 
In 2007, the Companyûs key disclosure activities consisted of 
 
ë  Dissemination of news and information in compliance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) 

and Stock Exchange Commission (SEC) via the SET Community Portal system and the company website (www.asimar.com).  
ë  Presentation of the Companyûs operating results, annual reports which can be downloaded, meeting notices, 

investment in other companies, report on the shareholders meeting in both Thai and English, company news and updates, as 
well as reports on investor relations activities on the company website.  In addition, prior to the posting of the meeting notice 
on the company website, shareholders and investors can express their opinions, including proposing additional items for 
meeting agendas and nominating qualified people to become Directors.  

ë  Dissemination of information at the Companyûs Opportunity Day event on 31 August 2007 and the lectures for 
analysts and investors, held on 3 occasions at the company headquarters, to provide knowledge and information  pertaining to 
the business and its performance and achievements. 

ë  Arrangement of a company visit on 9 October 2007, for approximately 60 people, in collaboration with the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand so that shareholders, investors and analysts can have a better understanding of the company operations 
by seeing the actual workplace and meeting with company executives. 

 
Section 5 : Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 
5.1 Policy on Corporate Governance 
 The Board of Directors had carefully examined principles of good corporate governance and, on 4 December 2007, 

announced the Companyûs policy on good corporate governance as follows: 
 
1.  Management of the Company and its operations is based on principles of best practice in good corporate governance, 

elimination of conflicts of interest through careful and honest conduct, with reasonable and independent application of ethical 
standards of doing business. 

2.  Establish efficient systems of financial control, operation, accountability of conduct, internal auditing and risk 
management and control, which is reviewed at least once a year. 

3.  Promote, direct and nurture confidence in disclosure of the Companyûs key information by ensuring it is accurate, 
timely and transparent.. 

4.  Promote and encourage equitable treatment of shareholders in accordance with guidelines on best practice of listed 
public companies. 

5.  Promote and provide equitable protection for the legal rights of stakeholders such as clients, employees, trading 
partners, shareholders, investors, creditors, business rivals, independent auditor, the public sector and the community in which 
the Company is located so that they can be confident of getting fair treatment. 

 
In addition, in order to promote participation in management of operations and 
serve as a mechanism to monitor, hold accountable, improve and evaluate whether the abovementioned vision, mission 

and policy are achieved, the Company assigned the Board of Executive Directors the responsibility of examining and 
developing relevant guidelines, and then presenting its findings and recommendations so that the guidelines which are 
approved can be implemented in a practical way.  
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 5.2 Policy on Business Ethics and Code of Conduct for Directors, Executives and Employees 
 In accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, especially in terms of accountability, transparency, 

honesty, moral integrity and ethics in order to achieve sustainable growth and business security, instill social responsibility and 
promote participation and team spirit in staff at all levels, the Company has prescribed the following Code of Conduct and 
Business Ethics for management and employees: 

-  Business operations must strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations, together with management strategies 
based on efficiency, effectiveness and transparency. 

-  Responsibility toward shareholders must be upheld through appropriate returns on investment as well as sufficient and 
accurate disclosure of the Companyûs vital information. 

-  Any conduct which would result in conflict of interests, including disclosure of commercial-in-confidence information 
as well as use of company information for self interests and/or for the benefit of others, will not be tolerated and violators must 
duly be punished for such transgression. 

-  Good relations must be maintained and appropriate treatment of clients and trading partners must always be provided 
on the basis of integrity. 

-  Responsibility toward employees must be upheld in compliance with relevant laws and regulations pertaining to 
employment and labour, as well as staff welfare. Development and training for employees must be promoted, including 
provision of occupational health and safety measures which can be clearly evaluated and justified. 

-  Social and environmental awareness and responsibility must be fostered through the compliance with relevant 
environmental laws and regulations, including support for activities which benefit the community and society as a whole. 

 
5.3 Corporate Vision and Mission 
The Companyûs Board of Directors has a firm commitment to executing their duties and responsibilities to the best of 

their knowledge, capability and experience.  Their role is to formulate policy, and to prescribe the Companyûs vision, strategies, 
targets, corporate mission, business plan and budget, as well as to hold the Management accountable for efficiently 
implementing policy and managing operations to achieve the set objectives in accordance with company regulations. 

 
Vision :  To establish ASIMAR as an internationally recognized brand name in the shipbuilding and ship repair industry, 

through the application of technology in developing its manufacturing process to achieve excellence in quality, timely delivery 
and ultimate client satisfaction.   

 
Mission : Commitment to providing a high standard of service to clients by means of effective quality and time control 

comparable to a leading world-class shipyard, with continuing development and optimal efficiency in the management of 
company resources for  

 
Clients : Well-received outcomes and complete client satisfaction 
Shareholders : Target returns on investment to their satisfaction 
Employees  : Human resources development with opportunities for career advancement and good quality of life 
Environment and Community : Participation in environmental and social development activities 
  
 The Company places great importance on having effective internal control and internal audit systems, efficient risk 

evaluation and management.  In addition, the Company also has an effective internal review system in order to ensure that 
operations comply with all legal and regulatory requirements as well as produce best results for the Company in terms of 
internal control. 
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 The Board of Directors established clear demarcation of the respective role, duties and responsibilities between the 
Board of Directors and the Board of Executive Directors, details of which are given under the heading Corporate Structure. 

 
 The Board of Directors supervises to the Board of Executive Directors in managing the operations of the Company in 

accordance to the prescribed policies.  In circumstances where there might be issues of conflict of interest or personal gain or 
loss, including issues which require shareholdersû opinions, the Company will follow the guidelines of the Stock Exchange 
Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).  

 
 The Company supports and facilitates training and development for its directors.  Useful documentation and information 

which assist in carrying out their duties are also provided, such as the Directorûs Handbook, etc. 
 
5.4 Corporate Structure 
5.4.1 The Board of Directors comprises 11 members, namely 
 Two members who are Executive Directors, and nine Non-executive Directors of which four are independent directors 

(the Chairman and the members of the Audit Committee) who fulfill all the required qualifications as prescribed by the 
Announcement of the Securities Exchange of Thailand on Qualifications and Modus Operandi of the Audit Committee.  The 
directors function to monitor and provide checks and balance of the management of company operations to ensure fair and 
proper business management for the best interest of shareholders. 

 
5.4.2 Definition of Independent Directors 
1.  Hold no more than 5% of the total number of voting shares in the Company or its subsidiary or affiliated companies 

or persons who may have conflict of interest (including related persons as prescribed in Section 258 of the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand Act). 

2.  For at least a year prior to becoming director, had no role in the management of the Company, as well as not being 
an employee or adviser on the Companyûs fixed payroll, not providing such professional service to the Company or its 
subsidiaries as auditor, lawyer, etc. or assigned authority to supervise (the Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates), or having 
possible conflicts of interest. 

3.  Have no business relations, whether as trading partner, or as either lender/borrower/guarantor of a loan; not standing 
to gain or lose any interests whether directly or indirectly, whether financial or other management benefits in the Company or 
its subsidiaries and affiliates, including with persons who may have conflicts of interest that could undermine independence. 

4. Are not close relations to senior executives or major shareholders of the Company or its subsidiaries or affiliates, or to 
persons with possible conflicts of interest, and are not assigned to represent the interests of directors or major shareholders. 

 
5.4.3 Combining or Separating Positions 
 The Chairman of the Board of Directors is a Non-executive Director and not the same person as the Managing Director, 

and must not be related in any way to the Management.  The Company has clear separation of the role, duties and 
responsibilities between the Board of Directors and company management which are precisely defined in writing. 

 
5.4.4 Restriction on the Number of Companies Each Director Can Serve as Director and Tenure of Office 
 The Company has not stipulated any such policy due to the fact that all its directors have been able to fully devote 

their time to company business.  As for the tenure of directors, this is somewhat restrictive by the shortage of expertise as the 
company business is a specialized industry and it would be disadvantaged by having a limit placed on the tenure it its 
directors. 
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5.4.5 Sub-committees 
 The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee to examine and reinforce the Companyûs internal control 

process.  Members of this Committee are Independent Directors who are not company executives and possess the 
qualifications prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Stock Exchange Commission regulations.  The company Board 
of Directors has also appointed a Selection and Remuneration Committee to function in accordance with company policy, of 
which details regarding their structure and duties and responsibilities are disclosed under the heading Management Structure.  
As for the number of times the committees have met, those details are provided under the heading Compliance with Good 
Corporate Governance in Section 4 çInformation Disclosure and Transparencyé. 

 
5.5  Defining the Role, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director 
 The Company has clear and distinct division of the roles, duties and responsibilities of the company directors and 

management.  Details of their respective duties and authority are provided under the heading Management Structure. 
 
5.6 Orientation and Knowledge Development for Directors 
Orientation for Directors 
 Newly-appointed directors will get general briefing on the shipbuilding and ship repair industry as well as company 

specific information. 
 
Knowledge Development for Directors 
 The Company, on a regular basis, sends its directors on knowledge development training courses organized by the Thai 

Institute of Directors Association as follows 
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 Name  Programme Year 
 Mr. Prakit  Pradipasen The role of Chairman (RCM) 2007 
   Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2003 
  
 Mr. Sutham     Tanpaibul The role of Chairman (RCM) 2004 
  
 Mr. Vibul Panitvong Director Certification Program (DCP) 2007 
   The role of Chairman (RCM)  2007 
 
 Mr. Prawat Chanruang -  
 
 Mrs.Warawan Nganthavee Director Certification Program (DCP) 2004 
   Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2004 
   Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2004 
 
 Mr. Sutep Tanpaibul -  
 
 Mr.Nonn Panitvong -  
 
 Mr.Suthin Tanpaibul Director Certification Program (DCP) 2003 
  
 Mrs.Wannaporn  Viravan Chairman   2000 
   Audit Committee Program (ACP) 2001 
   Director Certification Program (DCP) 1999 
 
 Mr. Sribhumi Sukhanetr Director Forum  2004 
   Board Performance Evaluation  2004 
   CEO Performance  Evaluation 2004 
   The role of Chairman (RCM)  2003 
   Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2003 
   Director Certification Program (DCP) 2002 
  
 Mr. Bumroong Chinda Director Certification Program (DCP) 2002 

   Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2002 
 
Matters not yet Implemented 
 The Board of Directors has not yet formulated policy and practical guidelines on its senior executives serving as 

directors of other companies.  This is because at present all of its senior executives are capable of fully devoting their time to 
company business and their position as directors of other companies has not yet posed any problem for the management of 
company operations. 

 
5.7 Evaluation of Performance of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director 
The Board of Directors does an annual evaluation of its performance. 
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The Board of Directors approved the evaluation form for the Board of Directors which was reviewed by the Selection 
and Remuneration Committee.  The results from the evaluation process are utilized to improve the performance of its duties as 
a collective unit.  Evaluation is in the following key areas: 

 
ë Meeting attendance 
ë Efficiency of communication 
ë Operational procedure 
ë Relations with the management 
 
The Board of Directors improves the performance of its duties each year on the basis of evaluation outcomes. 
 
The Board of Directors authorizes performance evaluation of Senior  Executives 
The Selection and Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering the presentation and approving the results of 

performance appraisal of the Managing Director and senior executives of the Company (at the level of Deputy Managing 
Director and Assistant Managing Director) for submission to the Board of Directors on an annual basis.  In the performance 
appraisal system, consideration is given to achievement of targets at the corporate level and capabilities at the personal level, 
including the rate of return in the industry of which the Company periodically conducts a market survey on remuneration for 
executives in order to be competitive in the market and offer sufficient remuneration to be able to retain and provide incentives 
to high performing executives.  The Chairman is the person designated as to advise the Managing Director and senior 
company executives of the evaluation outcomes. 

 
5.8 Formulation of Plans for Succession to Senior Executive Positions 
 The Board of Directors has assigned the Selection and Remuneration Committee the responsibility of setting plans for 

succession to top executive positions namely the Managing Director and other senior executives of the Company through a 
process to screen qualified candidates in order to build up the confidence of investors and employees in continuing growth and 
development of the Companyûs business operations. 

 
5.9 Company Secretary 
The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the role and duties of the Company Secretary.  In order to comply 

with best practice guidelines for listed companies and statutory requirements, the Board deemed it appropriate to appoint a 
Company Secretary to perform the prescribed duties.  At present, the Company has appointed Mr. Auychai Tivirach, Secretary 
to the Board of Directors as the Company Secretary. 

 
5.10 Internal Control and Internal Audit 
Safeguarding Internal Information 
The Company has general guidelines for its executives in safeguarding Important internal information which can impact 

on investorsû decision, in order that such information, especially information on its financial statements,  is not leaked to 
outsiders before being presented to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Stock Exchange Commission. 

 
As such, when there are purchase-sale transactions of company shares, company directors and senior executives, 

including their spouses and children who have not attained legal age, must conclude the purchase or sale transactions within 
three working days in order to report such transactions to the Stock Exchange Commission. 
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Perspective Regarding Internal Control 
 The Board of Directors realizes the necessity and importance of having an effective internal control system.  Since it is 

the responsibility of the Board to supervise business operations so as to create the best return to shareholders, having an 
effective and appropriate internal control system which is current and harmonious with the changing business climate which is 
much more fiercely competitive would certainly foster confidence of achieving company targets.  The Company has, therefore, 
hired an external juristic person, Sriruek Limited Partnership to conduct internal auditing of the Company.  The Company has 
an Internal Audit Unit which is responsible for liaising between the Audit Committee and the said juristic person. 

 
 The Company has clearly assigned specific power and duties to approve and perform according to types of transactions 

which are classified into the following categories, namely management, financial, manufacturing and procurement, permanent 
assets and other expenses. 

 
 The Board of Directors has set precise targets to comply with good corporate governance guidelines.  Moreover, the 

Board and the company management have established an appropriate and efficient internal control system which is effectively 
sufficient in preventing and managing significant risks under this ever changing business environment. 

 
 The Board of Directors has authorized the Audit Committee which is composed of 3 suitably qualified and independent 

directors to review the efficiency and effectiveness of the Companyûs internal control system and report directly to the Board of 
Directors, with an internal audit division responsible for reporting internal auditing and evaluating the systemûs effectiveness.  
The Audit Committee has a joint meeting with the auditors at least once a year in order to examine significant issues relating 
to key work systems and the internal control measures used to evaluate their effectiveness.  Findings of this review process are 
regularly reported to the Board of Directors in its meetings and, should there be any problem or recommendation which needs 
to be addressed, this will also be reported to the Board of Directors and followed up accordingly. 

 
 In addition, the Audit Committee also gave its endorsement to the company management to proceed with the formulation of 

a risk management plan before its submission to the Board of Directors for approval. The Audit Committee attaches great importance 
to the risk management plan as a valuable and vital management tool and a key element in good corporate governance. The Audit 
Committee also overseas the preparation of the risk management component in the monthly internal audit report. 

 
Risk Management 
 The Company has a set policy and process on risk management which apply to the organization as a whole.  These 

(the policy and the process) place emphasis on the connection, consistency and harmony of strategy, budget and risk 
management.  Risk factors are specified and evaluated in order to establish an efficient risk management system which is 
suitable to the activities of the work unit.  The Risk Management Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the 
risks regularly on a monthly basis in order that measures can be improved to deal with changing risks.  The Committee is also 
responsible for communicating to staff at all levels so that they are aware of and can utilize risk management principles in their 
daily work routine. 
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 The Risk Management Committee comprises the Managing Director, Line Directors, Department Manager and the 
Internal Audit Manager and is responsible for  

- development of the risk management plan 
- overseeing implementation of risk management 
- communicating to staff and providing training on risk management 
- overseeing that risk assessment and risk control measures are developed on the job 
- implementing risk management by means of assessing, controlling, reviewing and supervising 
-  ensuring that the Audit Committee considers and endorses the risk management plan before its submission to the 

Board of Directors at each quarter 
 
5.11 Board of Directorsû Report 
 The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as for the 

financial information which appear in the Annual Report.  It is the Boardûs duty to establish an effective internal control system 
in order to ensure confidence that records pertaining to financial and accounting information are accurate and complete.  In 
addition, it is also the Boardûs duty to disclose information regarding the company business operations, financial and otherwise, 
in a complete, sufficient, transparent, credible and timely manner.  This is so that shareholders get equitable treatment in terms 
of access to information as prescribed in the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Stock Exchange 
Commission. 
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Connected Transactions    
 During the year 2007, the company had connected business transactions with its subsidiary companies and related 

companies (related by way of common shareholders, directors and/or management) principally in respect of loans, ship repair, 
lease of land and utilities expenses. Such transactions, which have been agreed in terms and conditions between Asimar and 
those companies are summarized as below:-  

1.  Assets, Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities between the companies with subsidiary company, 
associated company and related companies as follows :- 

 
  Dec 31, 2007 Dec 31, 2006 Percentage 
  Million Baht  Million Baht of holding    
 Long term loan to Subsidiary company 
      Subsidiary company 
      - General Warehouse Co.,Ltd 2.20 4.80 99.90 
  
 Short term loan to Subsidiary company 
       Subsidiary company     
 - Ecomarine Co.,Ltd. 4.50 4.50 80.00 
 
 Other account receivable 
 Subsidiary company 
 - Asimar Marine Co.,Ltd. 0.88 - 99.90 
 - Ecomarine Co.,Ltd 4.95 1.85 80.00 
 
 Related company 
    - Globeco S.p.A - 2.50 -  
 
 Trade account receivable 
 Related company 
 - Thai Mercantile Co.,Ltd - 0.68 - 
 - Seatran Ferry Co.,Ltd 0.19 5.79 - 
 - Seatran Line Co.,Ltd 0.63 - - 
 - Seatran Ports Co.,Ltd 0.30 8.65 - 
  
 Accrued interest income 
 Subsidiary company 
 - Ecomarine Co.,Ltd. 0.27 0.06 80.0  
  
 Other payables 
       Related company 
      - Asimar Marine Co.,Ltd. - 1.25 99.90  
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  Dec 31, 2007 Dec 31, 2006 Percentage 
  Million Baht  Million Baht of holding   
 Unbilled receivables 
 Subsidiary company 
 - Ecomarine Co.,Ltd. 5.14 5.20 80.00 
      Related company 
 - Seatran Ports Co.,Ltd - 0.23 - 
 - Seatran Line Co.,Ltd - 0.4 - 
 - Seatran Ferry Co.,Ltd - 6.20 - 
 
 Trade accounts payable 
 Subsidiary company 
 - General Warehouse Co.,Ltd 1.17 0.27 99.90 
 - Asimar Marine Co.,Ltd. 6.62 5.90 99.90 
 
 Accrued interest expenses 
 Subsidiary company 
 - Asimar Marine Co.,Ltd. - 4.47 99.90 
 
 Long-term loan from subsidiary 
 Subsidiary company 
      - Asimar Marine Co.,Ltd. - 28.40 99.90 
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2. Revenues and Expenses between the company with subsidiary company, associated company and 
related companies as follows :- 

 
(Unit: Million Baht) 

  For the years ended 31 December 
  2007 2006 
 Subsidiary company 
 Revenues 
 Interest  income 0.60 0.50  
 
 Ship repair income 0.70 0.20 
 Shipbuilding income - 17.50 
 Other income 3.50 3.90 
 
 Expenses 
 Interest  expenses 0.50 2.24 
 Cost of services 21.50 21.59 
 Rental expenses 2.20 1.80 
 Landing charge 2.80 3.05 
 Utilities expenses 7.00 6.32 
 
 Related company 
 Revenues 
 Ship repair income 1.30 11.86 
 Interest  income 0.5 -  
  
 Expenses   
          Transportation 0.05 2.03 
   

 
Director ship and Management Position among  Related  comprise  which have connected Transactions 
 

 Name General Asimar  Eco Thai Seatran Seatran Seatran 
  Warehouse Marine Marine  Mercantile Ferry Line Ports 
 1.   Mr.Prakit Pradipasen x       
 2.   Mrs.Warawan Nganthavee x x x  x   
 3.   Mr.Sutep Tanpaibul x x  x    
 4.   Mr.Sutham Tanpaibul x x x  x, xx x, xx x, xx 
 5.   Mr.Vibul Panitvong x       
 6.   Mr.Suthin Tanphaibul   x x x  x 
 7.   Mr.Non Panitvong   x     
 8.   Mr.Sribhumi Sukhanetr     x   
 9. Mr.Bumroong Chinda   x     

 
x = Directors,  xx = Management 
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The Approval Criteria for Connected Transactions 
The company has systematic procedures and approval system for the connected transactions by ensuring their 

necessity, and their value, fair and reasonable, in compliance with the rules and regulations of SET and other related regulation. 
In addition, the connected transaction which is not normal business or supporting business must been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. 
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Report of the Audit Committee 
The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee who has the qualification setting up by SET. The Audit 

Committee consists of 3 independent directors who are trained and received the certificate of ùDirector Certification Programû 
from Thai Institute of Directors Association, namely:- 

 
1. Mrs. Wannaporn Viravan 
2. Mr. Sribhumi  Sukhanetr 
3. Mr. Bumroong  Chinda 
 
The Audit Committee is responsible for providing supervision as stipulated in its charter and in compliance with the 

best practice guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. 
 
 The Audit Committee held 4 official meetings to which company executives, the internal auditor and the auditor were 

invited to attend when there were pertinent issues on the meeting agenda.  The work carried out by the Audit Committee 
covered the following substantive issues: 

 
1.  Review of the accuracy and reliability of the Companyûs, and its subsidiariesû,  quarterly and annual financial 

statements for 2007 as assurance that the preparation of those statements were done properly, with disclosure of sufficient, 
complete and reliable information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as well as reviewing connected 
transactions to ensure that they were straightforward business transactions and complied with the guidelines set by the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand. 

2.  Meeting with the auditors to acknowledge the findings of the audit, problems or restrictions encountered during the 
course of the audit; to have consultations regarding the internal control, accounting and performance appraisal systems as well 
as to discuss on the auditorsû report. 

3.  Selection of auditors and determination of their remuneration for submission to the Board of Directors for 
endorsement before proposing the matter for approval in the shareholdersû meeting. 

4.  In terms of internal control, the Audit Committee hired external professionals to conduct an internal audit and report 
directly to the Audit Committee, same as in previous years.  In addition to that, the Audit Committee considered the annual 
audit work plan and sought comments from independent auditors in order to ensure that the work plan was comprehensive.  
Furthermore, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit report as well as acknowledged results of the monitoring and 
problem resolution regularly on a monthly basis and, in some cases, provided advice on significant matters which impacted on 
management efficiency, risk management, debt collection management as well as capital and budget management. 

5.  In terms of risk management, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual risk management plan proposed by the 
administrative department, provided advice and acknowledged reports of the administrative department, as well as evaluated 
the implementation of risk management as reported on a quarterly basis which was consistently and duly recorded at each 
meeting. 

6.  Preparation of reports of the Audit Committee meetings for submission to the Board of Directors regularly. 
 
Finally, it is the view of the Audit Committee that the Companyûs financial statements, internal audit system and 

process, as well as its risk management performance were consistently implemented and complied with the principles of good 
corporate governance.  

 

 
  Mrs. Wannaporn   Viravan 

  Chairperson of Audit Committee 
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Report of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed by the Board of Directors for a three-year tenure, which 

ends in  February , 2009. The Committee comprises three directors.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has the responsibility of selecting and nominating persons with suitable 

qualifications to be members of the Board of Directors, members of committees whose authorities, duties and responsibilities 
are assigned directly by the Board of Directors, as well as senior executives at the level of Managing Director. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee is also responsible for determining remuneration for members of the Board of Directors and 
executives at the level of Managing Director  and upwards to be proposed to the Board of Directors for their consideration. In 
2006, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held one meeting. 

 
In selecting and nominating members of the Board of Directors, members of the committees, and senior executives at 

the level of Managing Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee takes into consideration the specific 
qualifications, knowledge, abilities, skills, experience and expertise of each individual as well as their leadership, vision and 
attitude toward the organization, with the view that such qualities would be beneficial to the companyûs operations. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee also considers the appropriate size, structure and composition of the Board of 
Directors which is well-balanced and supportive of good corporate governance and efficient management, while complying 
with the current regulatory requirements and the changing business environment. 

 
In determining remuneration for the members of the Board of Directors and the senior executives, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee takes into consideration that the remuneration is commensurate with the duties and responsibilities 
assigned, the individualûs performance, the Bankûs overall performance, the business environment, and factors which may affect 
the companyûs operations or the economy as a whole. 

 
The remuneration for the directors and executives is indicated in the section of this Annual Report entitled ùThe 

Remuneration and Benefits for the Board of Directors and Top Executives in 2007. The Committee is of the opinion that such 
remuneration is appropriate and the said remuneration has been considered and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 
 
 
  Mr. Sribhumi      Sukhanetr 
  Chairman of Nominating and Remuneration Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111

Additional Information regarding auditorûs  service fee 
1. Audit fee 
The company and subsidiaries paid the audit fee to Dharmniti Auditing Co., Ltd. office limited for  year 2007 totaling 

615,000 Baht. 
 
2. Non-audit fee       
- No - 
 

Operating Results in year 2007 
 
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Consolidated Financial Data 

Unit: Thousand Baht 
  2007 2006 2005 
Total Assets 840,565 720,496 552,097 
Total Liabilities 566,699 451,735 307,587 
Shareholdersû Equity 273,866 268,761 244,509 
Revenue from services 670,572 514,059 557,692 
Revenue from Ship Repair 396,200 400,100 510,600 
Revenue from Shipbuilding 268,000 105,200 - 
Total Revenue 702,657 523,347 568,370 
Gross Profit 114,622 10,370 115,967 
Net Earning ( Loss ) 18,463 (5,902) 29,706 

 
Financial Ratio 

   2007 2006 2005 
Net Profit Margin (%) 2.63 (1.13) 5.23 
Return on Equity (%) 6.81 (2.30) 12.10 
Return on Asset (%) 2.37 (0.93) 5.32 
Book Value per share (Baht) 1.17 1.14 1.33 
Earnings per share (Baht) 0.08 (0.03) 0.16 

 
 The Companyûs total income in 2007 was THB 671 million, an increase of THB 257 million or 30 percent from THB 514 

million in 2006.  Of this amount, main income was derived from ship repair services which totaled THB 396 million, a decrease 
of THB 4 million or 1 percent from the previous yearûs earnings due to the high competition in the ship repair industry both 
domestically and internationally.  Revenue from the Companyûs shipbuilding operations, however, increased by THB 163 million. 
(As at December 2007, the GATI project advanced to 65 percent completed, the ALMANSOORI project was 10 percent 
completed.)  It should be noted that a portion of the revenue from shipbuilding and ship repair operations was paid in USD 
with a fixed exchange rate set in advance for the sum, while the capital expenses amounted to THB 556 million, an increase of 
THB 145 million or 35 percent from THB 411 million in 2006. 

 
 Selling and administration expenses rose by THB 1 million or 1 percent over the previous yearûs due to allowance for 

doubtful debts of THB 11 million. 
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 Net profit in 2007 amounted to THB 18 million, compared to the Companyûs net loss in 2006 of THB 6 million, which is 
an increase of 413 percent due to the declining revenue from ship repair services and making allowance for doubtful debts, as 
well as an increase in corporate tax payment by THB 12 million or 382 percent while interest payment decreased from 2006 by 
THB 2 million or 15 percent due to the decline in remaining principal and falling interest rates. 

 
 
Financial Statements 
1) Assets 
 The Companyûs total assets continued to increase in 2007 by THB 120 million or 17 percent over 2006.  Significant 

changes were due to: 
 
 Net trade account receivable decreased by THB 5 million or 12 percent because of the decline of THB 14 million from 

trade account receivable-related companies, representing a 92-percent decrease.  The Company increased the allowance for 
doubtful debts for ship repair works for private debtors and for sub-contractors whose debt exceeded 1 year amounting to THB 
11 million. 

 
 Unbilled receivables decreased by THB 25 million from THB 120 million in 2006 to THB 95 million in 2007, representing 

21 percent, of which THB 94 million was from shipbuilding operations. 
 
 Inventory increased by THB 20 million, representing 21 percent, due to stockpiling of raw materials in response to 

increasing shipbuilding operations and in anticipation of higher costs of raw materials. 
 
 Net property (land, building and equipment) increased by THB 14 million or 4 percent resulting from procurement of 

equipment and refurbishment of work stations for current and future shipbuilding operations. 
 
 Cash deposits with limitations on withdrawal, namely fixed time deposits and savings deposits, increased by THB 28 

million, representing 95 percent, in order to comply with a financial services condition in the shipbuilding contract which 
requires the Company to deposit with the bank a portion of its income from each installment. 

 
 Prepaid costs decreased by THB 10 million or 72 percent, mainly from costs of raw materials, etc. 
 
 Prepaid payment for goods increased by THB 31 million or 272 percent, mainly as advance payment for machinery 

which have yet to be delivered for the 2 shipbuilding projects. 
 
2) Liabilities and Shareholdersû Equity 
Liabilities and shareholdersû equity in 2007 increased by THB 120 million or 17 percent over 2006, which result from the 

increase in: 
 
ë Short term liabilities of which significant changes were 

- trade accounts payable decreased THB 12 million  
- accounts receivable  increased THB 129 million  
- advance payment from clients decreased THB 2 million  
- accrued expenses increased THB 20 million  
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ë  Long-term  liabilities decreased due to repayment of the principal amounting to THB 23 million 
 
ë  Shareholdersû equity increased by THB 5 million, from THB 273 million in 2006 to THB 274 million in 2007, due to: 
 
1. payment of annual dividend amounting to THB 12 million; 
2. the increase in minority interest of THB 2 million. 
 
3) Liquidity 
 
 The current ratio stands at 0.91 in 2007, a decrease from 1.06 in 2006 because the Company used THB 52 million in 

cash to invest in permanent infrastructure as long-term investment for future operations, resulting in the cash flow for 
investment activities in 2007 reaching THB 105 million.  Sources of capital included THB 9 million from bank overdrafts and 
short-term loans and THB 8 million from trust receipts and payment of dividends at a rate of THB 0.05.per share.  The 
Company, therefore, had net cash from funding activities totaling THB 26 million and net cash from operating activities totaling 
THB 177 million.  

 
 Debt to equity ratio stands at 2.07 in 2007, an increase from 1.68 in 2006 due to the increase in total liabilities by THB 

115 million or 25 percent.  Shareholdersû equity increased by THB 5 million or 2 percent. 
 
 The profitability ratio increased in 2007 compared to 2006 with a 1 percent decrease in ship repair operations while 

shipbuilding operations increased by 118 percent resulting in a rise of net profit by 2.63 percent in 2007 from 1.13 percent in 
2006.  The interest coverage ratio for the past year increased to 14.76 times, higher than the previous year which was 7.73 
times due to the fact that the Companyûs operating cash flow in 2007 was THB 6 million higher than in 2006.  However, the 
debt service coverage ratio (cash basis) increased to 3.23 due to the decline in Interest payment and provision for Long term 
loan. 

 
4) Capital Source 
 
 In 2007, the Companyûs total liabilities amounted to THB 567 million comprising THB 449 million in current liabilities 

and THB 315 million in other liabilities.  The increase in current liabilities came mainly from unbilled payable, bank overdrafts 
and short-term loans from financial institutions to increase liquidity in operations.  As for shareholdersû equity, this consists of 
THB 235 million in paid up capital and THB 8 million in appropriated retained earnings and THB 29 million in unappropriated 
retained earnings. 

 
 Return on assets in 2007 was 2.37, an increase from 0.93 in 2006, due to the Companyûs increasing investment in fixed 

assets, especially the refurbishments of work stations according to the plantûs logistics systems requirements and capital 
investment in the electrical system of the slipways to save power. 
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Board of directorsû  responsibility for financial reporting 
 
The consolidated financial statements of Asian Marine Services PCL and subsidiary companies have been prepared in 

line with the requirements of the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992), the Securities and Exchange ActB.E. 2535 and 
the Announcement of the Department of Commercial Registration dated September 14, 2001, issuedaccording to Section 11, 
paragraph 3, of the Accounting Act B.E. 2543 (2000), by conforming to accounting standards prescribed by the Federation of 
Accounting Professions. 

 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial reports of the Company, prepared to assure that the statements of 

the financial position, income and cash flows are reliable and accurate, that effective internal control systems are in place, that 
accounting information has been accurately, completely and adequately recorded to safeguard assets and to protect against 
fraud and material irregularities. In preparing the financial reports, a large amount of consideration has been given to the 
selection of suitable accounting policies, which have been continuously maintained and are complied with generally accepted 
accounting standards. Significant information has been adequately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, to which 
the opinion of the auditor on the financial statements of Asian Marine Services PCL and the consolidated financial statements 
of Asian Marine Services PCL and subsidiary companies have been given in the report of the certified public accountant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Mr.Prakit Pradipasen Ms.Warawan    Nganthavee 
 Chairman Managing Director 
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS 
SUBSIDIARIES 

-------------------------------------------------------------------- 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR 
To  The Shareholders and Board of Directors of 
 Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited 
 
I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited and its 

subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholdersû equity and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the separate financial statements of Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited for the 
same year. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Company and its subsidiaries as to their 
correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on my audit. The consolidated financial statements of Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited and its 
subsidiaries and the separate financial statements of Asian Marine Service Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 
December 2006, before restatement, were audited by another auditor, under his report dated 22 February 2007, expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those statements. 

 
 I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
 In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 

financial position of Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited and subsidiaries as at December 31, 2007, the consolidated 
results of their operations, the consolidated changes in their shareholdersû equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year 
then ended and the financial position of Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2007, the results of 
its operations, the changes in its shareholdersû equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

 
I draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements with regard to change in accounting standard on the accounting 

for investment in associates presented in the separate financial statements under the cost method rather than the equity 
method.  In changing this accounting policy, the Company had to restate the separate financial statements for the periods 
2006, presented herein for comparative purposes, as though the Company has always retrospectively applied with this new 
accounting policy. 

 
 
   
 
 
  (Mr.Pojana  Asavasontichai) 
  Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4891 
 
Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited 
Bangkok, Thailand 
February 15, 2008 
2008/182/7977 
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 ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES  
BALANCE SHEETS 

 
(Unit: Baht) 

 Consolidated The Company Only 
  Note As at December As at December As at December As at December 
               Assets  31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006 
      (Restated) 
Current assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 6  55,143,563 9,618,861 51,009,297  6,396,640 
Investment 7  25,000,000  -    25,000,000  -    
Trade accounts receivable       
      Related parties 8  1,127,563 15,121,998 1,127,563  15,121,998 
      Unrelated parties  52,767,711 32,221,108 51,432,658  31,733,635 
      Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts  (16,785,125)  (5,383,848) (16,297,652)  (4,896,375) 
      Trade accounts receivable, net 9  37,110,149 1,959,258 36,262,569  1,959,258 
Unbilled receivables       
        Related parties 8   -     6,823,871 5,144,679  12,028,264 
        Unrelated parties 10  95,188,962 113,021,837 95,188,962  113,021,837 
Total unbilled receivables  95,188,962 119,845,708 100,333,641  125,050,101 
Short-term loan to subsidiary 8   -      -     4,500,000  4,500,000 
Amounts due from related parties 8   -     2,500,000 5,839,139  1,845,555 
Inventories, net 11  113,189,368 93,212,358 113,189,368   93,212,358 
     Other current assets       
     Withholding tax deducted at source 12  8,089,072 22,092,904 7,420,136   21,599,005 
     Prepaid expenses  3,835,139  3,688,883 3,810,283  13,664,017 
     Advance payment for purchase of goods  41,984,532 11,295,421 41,984,532  11,295,421 
     Other receivables - subcontractors, net  5,547,592 4,534,547 5,547,592  4,534,547  
     Accrued interest income - subsidiary 8   -      -    270,138  58,284 
    Others  24,346,007 14,710,584 24,080,962   14,160,266 
Total current assets  409,434,384 333,458,524 419,247,657  338,275,452 
Non-current assets       
     Restricted bank deposits 13  57,645,514 29,521,399 57,645,514  29,521,399 
     Investments accounted for under  14   -      -    18,796,670  55,248,449 
     the equity method 
     Long-term loan to subsidiary  8   -      -     2,200,000  4,800,000 
     Property, plant and equipment, net 15  362,454,955 348,175,488 342,299,309  324,048,774 
     Intangible assets, net 16  7,326,540 6,051,694 2,351,147  2,744,826 
     Other non-current assets  3,703,944 3,289,238 2,690,344   2,275,638 
Total non-current assets  431,130,953 387,037,819 425,982,984  418,639,086 
Total assets  840,565,337 720,496,343 845,230,641  756,914,538 
       
Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements. 
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) 

  
                                                                                                                                         (Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  Note As at December As at December As at December As at December 
        Liabilities and sharesdders equity  31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006 
Current Liabilities     (Restated) 
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from      
  financial institutions 17  81,229,182  71,693,507  81,150,612 71,593,030 
Trust receipts 17  11,858,856 11,850,712  11,858,856 11,850,712 
Trade accounts payable       
        Related parties 8   -      -     7,795,720 5,326,544 
        Unrelated parties  41,603,137 53,816,874 41,150,761 53,786,728 
Total trade accounts payable  41,603,137 53,816,874 48,946,481 59,113,272 
Unbilled payables 10  166,303,297 36,943,098 166,303,297 36,943,098 
Amounts due to related parties 8   -     1,345,003  -     2,591,043 
Current portion of hire-purchase payable  243,391  293,497 243,391 293,497 
Current portion of long-term loans 18  18,320,000  23,760,000 18,320,000  23,760,000 
Other current liabilities      
     Advances received from customers  66,094,736  67,718,565 66,094,736 67,718,565 
     Accrued expenses  48,821,017 29,085,875 44,966,568 25,547,809 
     Provisions 19  4,061,928  6,877,366 4,061,928  6,877,366 
     Accrued interest expenses - subsidiary  8   -        -       -     4,468,229 
     Corporate income tax payable  2,633,761  54,984 2,402,113  -    
     Others  7,712,134  11,914,337 7,495,518 11,833,667 
Total current liabilities  448,881,439 315,353,818 451,843,500 322,590,288 
Non-current liabilities     
      Long-term loan from subsidiary  8   -       -       -     28,400,000 
      Hire-purchase payable - net of current portion  173,788 417,179 173,788 417,179 
      Long-term loans - net of current portion 18  117,644,000  135,964,000 117,644,000  135,964,000 
Total non-current liabilities  117,817,788 136,381,179 117,817,788 164,781,179 

Total liabilities  566,699,227  451,734,997 569,661,288 487,371,467 
    

     
Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.   
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
  

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  Note As at December As at December As at December As at December 
                 31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006 
      (Restated) 
Shareholdersû equity       
     Share capital   20, 21     
     Registered share capital       
 234,810,100 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each   
  (234,810,100 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each)   234,810,000 234,810,100 234,810,100  234,810,000  
 Issued and paid-up share capital       
  234,810,100 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each       
  (234,810,100 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each)   234,810,100  234,810,100  234,810,100  234,810,100 ç 
     Retained earnings       
        Appropriated - statutory reserve 22    8,225,391  7,337,061  8,225,391  7,337,061 
        Unappropriated   28,682,338 22,847,526 32,533,862  27,395,910 
 
Equity attributable to Companyûs shareholders   271,717,829 264,994,687 275,569,353  269,543,071 
Minority interest - equity attributable to minority        
     shareholders of subsidiary   2,148,281 3,766,659   -       -    
Total shareholdersû equity   273,866,110 268,761,346 275,569,353  269,543,071 
Total liabilities and shareholdersû equity   840,565,337 720,496,343 845,230,641   756,914,538 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.  
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 ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 INCOME STATEMENTS
  

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only  
 For the year For the year  
 ended December 31, ended December 31, 
 Note 2007 2006 2007 2006 
         (Restated) 
Revenues     
   Service income  670,572,348   514,059,384 665,013,500  529,991,657 
   Other income  32,085,168  9,288,124  36,013,350  13,412,602 
Total revenues  702,657,516  523,347,508 701,026,850  543,404,259 
Expenses       
   Cost of services  555,950,320  410,689,592 556,014,413  426,486,479 
   Administrative expenses  99,373,213  97,940,273 96,817,505  95,752,668 
   Directorûs remuneration  1,740,000  1,860,000 1,740,000  1,860,000 
Total expenses     657,063,533  510,489,865 654,571,918  524,099,147 
Income before interest expenses and corporate income tax 45,593,983  12,857,643 46,454,932  19,305,112 
Interest expenses  (13,962,609)  (16,482,947) (14,421,812)  (18,708,159) 
Corporate income tax  (14,773,080)  (3,062,643) (14,266,508)  (1,813,586) 
Earnings (loss) before minority interest  16,858,294  (6,687,947) 17,766,612  (1,216,633) 
Net (gain) loss attributable to minority interest  1,605,178  785,523   -      -    
Net income gain (loss) for the year  18,463,472   (5,902,424) 17,766,612   (1,216,633) 
 Earnings per share 24       
    Basic earnings per share    
        Net income gain (loss)  0.08  (0.03) 0.08   (0.01) 
    Diluted earnings per share     
        Net income gain (loss)   0.08   (0.03) 0.08   (0.01) 
        
        
Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.   
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 ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES  
 STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERSû EQUITY   
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2007 AND 2006    
        

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated     
    
    share capital  Retained earnings    
  issued and      Minority  
 Note paid-up Legal reserve Unappropriated  interests  Total 
 
Beginning balance, as at  January 1, 2006  184,139,756  7,337,061 52,230,960  801,655  244,509,432 
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2006   -     -    (5,902,424) -      (5,902,424) 
Converted warrants to ordinary shares 21  50,670,344   -      -      -     50,670,344 
Dividend paid 27   -      -     (23,481,010)  -     (23,481,010) 
Subsidiary increased paid-up   -      -      -     3,750,527 3,750,527  
share capital during the year 
Minority interests - equity attributable    -      -      -     (785,523) (785,523) 
Beginning balance, as at  January 1, 2007  234,810,100 7,337,061 22,847,526 3,766,659 268,761,346 
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2007   -      -     18,463,472  -    18,463,472 
Legal reserve   -     888,330   (888,330)  -      -  
Dividend paid 27   -      -     (11,740,330)  -     (11,740,330) 
Decrease in minority interest from     -    -      -      (13,200) (13,200) 
decrease in reduction            
in registered share capital          
Minority interests - equity     
attributable to minority    
shareholders of subsidiary         -       -     -    (1,605,178) (1,605,178)  
Ending balance, as at  December 31, 2007  234,810,100      8,225,391         28,682,338  2,148,281  273,866,110  
       
     
       
Notes to interim financial statements form an integral part of these statements.     
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 ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES  

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERSû EQUITY 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2007 AND 2006  
       
 (Unit: Baht) 
  The Company Only    
             Retained earnings  
   Issued and Appropriated    
    paid-up statutory     
      Note share capital  reserve Unappropriated Total 
 
Beginning balance, as at  January 1, 2006    184,139,756  7,337,061 52,230,960 243,707,777 
- Adjustment : - Cumulative effect of  
change in accounting policy for         
   investment in subsidiary and associated companies  4   -      -     (137,407) (137,407) 
Beginning balance, January 1, 2006 - as restated  184,139,756 7,337,061 52,093,553  243,570,370 
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2006   -      -     (1,216,633) (1,216,633) 
Converted warrants to ordinary shares  21  50,670,344  -      -     50,670,344  
Dividend paid  27  -      -     (23,481,010) (23,481,010) 
Beginning balance, as at  January 1, 2007   234,810,100  7,337,061 27,395,910 269,543,071 
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2007   -      -    17,766,612 17,766,612 
Legal reserve   -  888,330 (888,330)   -    
Dividend paid  27   -      -     (11,740,330) (11,740,330) 
Ending balance, as at  December 31, 2007   -   8,225,391 32,533,862  275,569,353 
       
       
   
Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements.     
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS     
       (Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
 For year ended December 31, For year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Cash flows from operating activities     
     Net income (loss) 18,463,472 (5,902,424) 17,766,612 (1,216,633) 
     Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash     
  provided by (paid from) operating activities: -     
 Bad debts and allowance for doubtful accounts 11,401,277 6,939,360 11,401,277 6,939,360 
        Allowance for stock obsolescence  -     670,044  -    670,044 
        Depreciation and amortization 37,954,679  30,435,966 30,850,332 27,506,282 
        Amortisation in other current assets  -     1,358,935  -    11,316,462 
        Loss on impairement of subsidiary  -      -     5,039,438 2,698,373 
        Reversal of allowance for stock obsolescence (399,262)  -     (399,262) -    
        Reversal of allowance for impairement on subsidiary  -      -     (1,074,459) -    
        Loss (Gain) on sales of equipment (1,040,951) (1,835,755) (1,120,974) (1,729,711) 
        Unrealised foreign exchange loss  214,788 115,001 214,788 115,001 
        Provision for liabilities  -     6,877,366  -     6,877,366 
        Attributable to minority interest (1,605,178) (785,523)  -      -    
     Income from operating activities before changes in operating      
 assets and liabilities 64,988,825  47,872,970  62,677,752 53,176,544 
     Decrease (increase) in operating assets 
        Trade accounts receivable (6,767,424) (13,387,078) (5,919,994) (13,387,078) 
        Unbilled receivables 24,656,747 (6,381,764) 24,716,460 (11,586,157) 
        Amounts due from related parties 2,500,000 (2,500,000) (3,993,584)  352,072  
        Inventories (19,577,748) (31,280,981) (19,577,748) (20,907,411) 
        Other current assets  (17,480,156) (32,456,933) (17,802,103)  (35,863,191) 
        Other non-current assets (414,706) (24,860) (414,706) (24,860) 
     Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities      
        Trade accounts payable (12,213,119) 34,787,782 (10,166,173) 36,234,937 
        Other account payable-related parties  (1,345,003)  -     (2,591,043)  -    
        Unbilled payables  129,360,199 6,943,098 129,360,199  36,943,098 
        Advances received from customers (1,623,829) 61,399,675 (1,623,829) 61,399,675 
        Provision for liabilities (2,815,438)  -     (2,815,438)  -    
        Accrued income tax 2,578,777  54,984   2,402,113   -    
        Other current liabilities 15,532,941 15,936,619 10,612,381 18,867,969 
           Net cash from operating activities 177,382,066  110,966,061 164,866,837 125,208,147 
    
    
Notes to interim financial statements form an integral part of these statements.     
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS      

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
 For year ended December 31, For year ended December 31, 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Cash flows from investing activities     
     Cash payment for purchases of plant and equipment  (52,471,996) (106,573,600) (49,942,048) (98,217,223) 
     Proceeds from sales of equipment 2,446,095 3,416,959  2,442,834 3,303,612 
     Cash payment for purchase of intangible assets (2,442,140) (1,635,364) (87,000) (392,250) 
     Increase in share capital of subsidiary  -      -      -     (14,999,475) 
     Proceed from additional paid-up share capital from       
 minority shareholders of subsidiary  -     3,750,527  -     -    
     Cash return from decrease in reduction in registered        
 share capital in subsidiaries  -      -     32,486,800 -    
     Decrease in minority interest from decrease in reduction     
 in registered share capital (13,200)  -      -     -    
     Increase in short-term investment (25,000,000)  -     (25,000,000) -    
     Decrease in fixed deposit (28,124,115) (26,957,549) (28,124,115) (26,957,549) 
     Increase in short-term loan to subsidiary -      -      (4,500,000) 
     Decrease in long-term loan to subsidiary -      -     2,600,000  1,600,000 
        Net cash used in investing activities (105,605,356) (127,999,027) (65,623,529) (140,162,885) 
Cash flows from financing activities  
 Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and short-term      
 loans from financial institutions 9,535,675 24,049,671 9,557,582 24,146,568  
     Increase (decrease) in trust receipts 8,144  (15,841,010) 8,144 (15,841,010) 
     Repayment of long-term loan from subsidiary  -      -     (28,400,000) (2,500,000) 
     Repayment of hire-purchase payable (293,497) (1,227,430) (293,497) (1,227,430) 
     Repayment of long-term loan (23,760,000) (21,060,000) (23,760,000) (21,060,000) 
     Proceeds from additional share capital  -     50,670,344  -     50,670,344 
     Dividend paid (11,740,330) (23,481,010) (11,740,330) (23,481,010) 
        Net cash from (used in) financing activities (26,250,008) 13,110,565 (54,628,101) 10,707,462  
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 45,524,702  (3,924,950) 44,612,657 (4,247,276) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,618,861 13,543,811 6,396,640 10,646,466 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  55,143,563 9,618,861 51,009,297 6,396,640 
Supplemental cash flows information: -      
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of: -     
 Cash on hand 152,735 158,508 149,804 149,922 
        Cash at bank   
        - Saving account 52,299,510 7,562,401 48,431,327 4,934,203 
        - Current account 2,690,318 1,238,531  2,427,166   1,312,415 
        Fixed deposit 3 months 1,000  -      -      -    
 55,143,563 9,618,861 51,009,297 6,396,54 
     Cash paid during the year for: -     
        Interest expenses 18,548,984 16,277,979 19,181,533  16,630,326 
        Corporate income tax 12,847,700 10,444,986 11,864,395 9,233,722  
     Non-cash items consist of: -             
 Purchase of fixed assets that has not yet been paid  -    143,326   -     143,326 
     
Notes to financial statements form an integral part of these statements. 
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ASIAN MARINE SERVICES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 
 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
1.1 Legal status and address 
 Asian Marine Services Public Company Limited (çThe Companyé) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in 

Thailand. 
The address of its registered office is as follows:                
599/1 Rimtangrotfai Chongnonsri Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok and it has 1 branch which is located at 128 Mu 3 

Suksawad Road, Leamfapa, Prasamutjedee, Samutprakarn, Thailand. 
1.2 Nature of the Companyûs business 
  Main business activities are principally engaged in the ship building and ship repair. 
1.3 Major shareholder Name 
 Its major shareholder is Tanphaibul Company Limited. 
1.4  Data of employees     
 As at December 31, 2007 and 2006, the number of employees of the Company is approximate 512 persons and 646 

persons, respectively (The Company Only 364 persons and 517 persons, respectively). 
The employeesû benefit for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to Baht 97.05 million and Baht 

109.75 million, respectively (The Company Only amounted to Baht 76.96 million and Baht 90.74 million, respectively) The 
employeesû benefit was consisted of salary, wages, bonus, social security, contribution to provident fund and welfare.  

 
2. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the 

Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547. The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with the 
stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated September  14, 2001 issued under the 
Accounting Act B.E. 2543. 

 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the 
accounting policies. 

 
3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 
 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the following subsidiaries 

which were incorporated in Thailand. 
    Assets as a Revenues as a 
    percentage percentage to the 
    to the consolidated consolidated total 
   Percentage of total assets as at revenues for the years 
 Companyûs name Nature of business shareholding December 31, December 31, 
   2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
   Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
 General Warehouse Co., Ltd. Lease of warehouse 100 100 1.07 1.38 0.02 0.04 
 Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subcontractor 100 100 1.25 0.27 0.80 0.45 
 Eco marine Co., Ltd. Provision of pollution control  80 80 3.11 3.30 0.80 0.33 
  and environmental  
  management services 
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Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated from the 
consolidated financial statements.  

 
4. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
4.1) In 2007, the Company changed its accounting policy for investment in subsidiary companies from the equity method 

to the cost method for the Companyûs financial statements to comply with the Notification of Federation of Accounting 
Profession No.26/2549 (Amendment No. 1) regarding Thai Accounting Standard  No.44 çConsolidated Financial Statements and 
Accounting for Investments in Subsidiariesé that effective for the Financial statements for fiscal years beginning on after 
January 1, 2007. This change in accounting policy has been accounted for retroactively in the Companyûs financial statements 
as if the Company had recorded such investments by the cost method according to the new accounting policy continuously.  
Therefore, the comparative information for the Companyûs financial statements for the third quarter year 2006 and year ended 
December 31, 2006 has been restated to conform to the new accounting policy. 

Comparative information for the Companyûs financial statements for the year 2006 and as at December 31, 2006 has 
been restated to reflect the effect of the change to cost method as follows: 

  Company Only 
  Baht 
  As at December 
  31, 2006 
Balance sheet :  
Decrease in investment in subsidiary   (4,548,384) 
Decrease in retained earnings   (2,517,045) 
    

  Company Only 
  Baht 
  For the year ended  
  December 31, 2006 
Statement of income :   
Increase in equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 7,384,164   
Loss on dissolution of subsidiary  3,142,084 
Reversal of allowance for impairment on subsidiary 443,711 
Increase in net  income   4,685,791 
Increase in earnings per share  0.02 
 
Cumulative effects from the change in accounting policy from the past to the beginning of the accounting  for the year 

ended December 31, 2006  to be adjusted to reduce retained earnings brought forward for the Companyûs financial decrease of 
137,406.98 Baht. 

 
4.2) The Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has issued Notification No. 9/2550, No. 38/2550 and No.62/2550 

regarding Thai Accounting Standards (TAS), which were announced in the Royal Gazette. These Notifications mandate the use 
of the following Thai Accounting Standards (amended 2007) in place of the previous versions, which are cancelled. 

Thai Accounting Standards (revised version) which are effective for the current year (effective for the fiscal years 
beginning on or after January 1, 2007) 

 TAS  44  Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
 TAS  45  Investments in Associates 
 TAS  46  Interests in Joint Ventures 
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Accounting Standard No. 44, the Company retroactively adjusted the separated financial statements in the previous year 

shown in note 4.1 Account Standard No.45 and No.46 are not relevant to the Company. 
4.3) Thai Accounting Standards (revised version) which are not effective for the current year (effective for the fiscal 

years beginning on or after January 1, 2008) 
 TAS  25  Cash Flow Statements 
 TAS  29  Leases 
 TAS  31  Inventories 
 TAS  33  Borrowing Costs 
 TAS  35  Presentation of Financial Statements 
 TAS  39   Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors  
 TAS  41  Interim Financial Reporting 
 TAS  43  Business Combinations 
 TAS  49  Construction Contracts 
 TAS  51 Intangible Assets (newly issued) 
 
The management of the Company has assessed the effect of these revised and newly issued accounting standards and 

believes that they will not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the year in which they are initially 
applied. However, Accounting Standard No.29 and 43 are not relevant to the Company. 

 
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
5.1 Revenue recognition 
The Company recognized service income on the basis of percentage of completion based on the assessment of 

completion of a physical proportion of work under the contract by its engineer. The provision for the total anticipated loss on 
ship building and ship repair will be made in the accounts when the possibility of loss is ascertained.The recognized revenue 
which has not yet been due as per contract is presented under the caption of çUnbilled receivablesé in the balance sheets. 

Rental income and landing charges are recognized by the subsidiaries on an accrual basis, and service revenue is 
recognized by the subsidiaries when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion. 

Interest income is recognized as interest accrued based on the effective rate method. 
 
5.2 Cost of services 
Cost of services are determined by allocating cost of material, direct labour and overhead as anticipated to be incurred 

for the whole project and recognizing as cost of services in the income statements in proportion to percentage of completion. 
The recognized cost of services which has not yet been paid has been shown under the caption of çUnbilled payablesé 

in the balance sheets.  
 
5.3 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at financial institutions, and all highly liquid investments with 

an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions. 
 
5.4 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts 
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the 

estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experiences 
and analysis of debtor aging. 
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5.5 Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, cost of raw materials and semi-raw materials being 

determined on the first-in, first-out basis and are charged to cost of ship building or ship repair whenever consumed. 
Allowance for stock obsolescence is set up for old, obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated inventories. 
 
5.6 Investments  
Investment in subsidiary companies are presented by the cost method for the Companyûs financial statements. 
In the case of impairment on investment, the loss will be recognized in the income statement. 
Short-term investment and other long-term investment in non-marketable equity security is stated at cost. Loss on 

impairment is set aside only for any permanent diminution in the value of the investment and is included in the income 
statements. 

 
5.7 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 
Land is stated at cost. Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss 

on impairment of assets (if any). 
Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their depreciable amount (the cost of asset less its 

residual value) on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 
 Floating dockyards 20 years 
 Building and other constructions 15 - 21 years 
 Building improvement 16 - 21 years 
 Machinery and equipment 5 years 
 Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
 Marine and motor vehicles 5 Years 
Depreciation is included in determining income.   
No depreciation is provided on land and construction in progress. 

 
5.8 Intangible assets and amortization 
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of intangible assets is calculated by 

reference to cost on a straight-line basis over the expected future period, for which the assets are expected to generate 
economic benefit, as follows: - 

 Leasehold right  24 years 
 Know-how for use in building pollution control ships 10  years 
 Software 5 and 10 years 
 The amortization is included in determining income. 
 

5.9 Related party transactions 
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company and its subsidiaries, 

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company and its subsidiaries. 
They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the 

Company and its subsidiaries that gives them significant influence over the Company and its subsidiaries, key management 
personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company and its subsidiariesû operations. 
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5.10 Foreign currencies 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the transaction dates. Assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the balance sheet date are translated into Baht at the exchange 
rates ruling on the balance sheet date. 

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income. 
 
5.11 Impairment of assets 
The Company and its subsidiaries assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company and its subsidiaries make an estimate of the assetûs recoverable amount. 
Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. An assetûs recoverable amount is the 
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

 
5.12 Employee benefits 
Salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as expenses 

when incurred. 
 
5.13 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past event, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  

 
5.14 Income tax 
Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.  
 
5.15 Use of accounting estimates 
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 

make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances, effecting amounts reported in these financial statements and related 
notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of :- 

(Unit : Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007 2006 
Cash on hand 152,735 158,507 149,804 149,922 
Cash at banks -  Saving account 52,299,510 7,962,401 48,431,327 4,934,203 
      -  Current account 2,690,318 1,238,531 2,427,166 1,312,415 
Fixed deposit 3 months 1,000 - 1,000 - 
  55,143,563 9,618,861 51,009,297 6,396,540 
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7. SHORT - TERM INVESTMENT 
Short - term investment consisted of :-   

(Unit : Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007 2006 
Bill of exchange 25,000,000.00  -  25,000,000.00  -  
 
Bill of exchange consisted of :-       
 Consolidated and The Company Only Fair value Interest Rate Maturity 
 Bill of exchange issued by financial institution 25,000,000 3.25% 4/1/2551 
 
8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related parties, which 

have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of businesses between the Company 
and those companies. Below is a summary of those transactions. 

 
 Million Baht Transfer Pricing Policy 
 2007 2006  
Transections with subsidiaries 
(being eliminated from the consolidated financial statement) 
Ship building income - 17.5 Price close to that charged to 
   ordinary customers 
Ship repair income 0.7 0.2 Price close to that charged to 
   ordinary customers 
Interest income 0.6 0.5 Interest rate at MLR per annum  
   without collateral 
Other income 3.5 3.9 Supervisor fee of Baht 130,000 per 
   month, office service fee of Baht 
   20,000 per month and supplies were  
   sold at cost plus margin 10% 
Cost of services 21.5 21.6 Baht 180 - 400 per day per person 
    and agreed upon basis 
Utilities expenses 7.0 6.3 Cost plus margin 10% 
Landing expenses 2.8 3.1 Baht 8,000 per day 
Rental expenses 2.2 1.8 Baht 180,000 per month 
Interest expenses 0.5 2.2 Interest rate at MLR per annum 
   without collateral 
Ship repair income 1.3 11.9 Price close to that charged to  
   ordinary customers 
Service expense - 2.0 Based on each subcontractor work 
   order 
Interest income 0.5 - Interest rate at 6% per year 
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The balances of the accounts as at December 31, 2007 and 2006  between the Company and those related companies 

are as follows: 
 (Unit: Baht) 

 Relationship Consolidated The Company Only 
  As at Dec As at Dec As at Dec As at Dec 
  31, 2007 31, 2006 31, 2007 31, 2006 
Trade accounts receivable - related parties    
Seatran Ports Co., Ltd. Common directors 305,000 8,647,970 305,000 8,647,970 
Seatran Ferry Co., Ltd. Common directors 192,600 5,792,986 192,600 5,792,986 
Seatran Line Co., Ltd. Common directors 629,963 -  629,963     - 
Thai Mercantile Co., Ltd. Common directors      -         681,042         -         681,042 
  1,127,563 15,121,998 1,127,563 15,121,998 
Unbilled receivables - related parties     
Seatran Ferry Co., Ltd. Common directors        -  6,180,000        -   6,180,000 
Eco marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary         -           -  5,144,679 5,204,393 
Seatran Ports Co., Ltd. Common directors        -   231,490       -  231,490 
Seatran Line Co., Ltd. Common directors       -  412,381           -  412,381 
         -  6,823,871 5,144,679 12,028,264 
Short-term loan to subsidiary      
Eco marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary           -            -       4,500,000 4,500,000 
Amounts due from related parties      
Globeco S.P.A. Co.,Ltd. Shareholder company  
 of subsidiary -  2,500,000   -    - 
Eco marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary  -    -        4,956,763 1,845,555 
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary     -     -  882,376 - 
  -  2,500,000        5,839,139 1,845,555 
Accrued interest income - subsidiary      
Eco marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary   -  -          270,138 58,284 
Long-term loan to subsidiary      
General Warehouse Co., Ltd. Subsidiary     -     -  2,200,000 4,800,000 
Trade accounts payable - related parties 
General Warehouse Co., Ltd. Subsidiary     -   -  1,170,470 268,284 
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary   -         -     6,625,250 5,058,260 
  -  -    7,795,720 5,326,544 
Amounts due to related parties 
Director Director     -  1,345,003          -  1,345,003 
General Warehouse Co., Ltd. Subsidiary    -           -   -   - 
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary     -   -  -  1,246,040 
    -  1,345,003           -  2,591,043 
Accrued interest expenses - subsidiary      
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary   -   -  -  4,468,229 
Long-term loan from subsidiary  

Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. Subsidiary -   -  -  28,400,000 
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During in 2007, movements of short-term loan to subsidiaries and long-term loan from subsidiary were as follow: - 
Short-term loan to subsidiary 

(Unit: Baht) 
 The Company Only 
 Loan to Percentage of interest charge 
  Additions Repayment  
 December 31, during during December 31, December 31, December 31, 
 2006 the year the year 2007 2006 2007 
     Percent Percent 
Eco marine Co., Ltd. 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 7.75 6.875 
 
Short-term loan is an unsecured loan to the subsidiary for use in the operations. This loan is repayable within 

November 2, 2008. 
Long-term loan to subsidiary 
                             (Unit: Baht) 

 The Company Only 
 Loan to Percentage of interest charge 
  Additions Repayment     
  December 31, during during December 31,  December 31, December 31, 
 2006 the year the year 2007 2006 2007 
     Percent Percent 
General Warehouse Co., Ltd. 4,800,000 - 2,600,000 2,200,000 8.00 6.875 
Long-term loan is an unsecured loan to the subsidiary for use in the operations. This loan is repayable within December 

31, 2009.  
 
Long-term loan from subsidiary 

(Unit: Baht) 

 The Company Only 
 Loan from Percentage of interest charge 
  Additions Repayment     
  December 31, during during  December 31,  December 31,  December 31, 
 2006 the year the year 2007 2006 2007 
     Percent Percent 
Asimar Marine Co., Ltd. 28,400,000 - 28,400,000 - 8.00 6.875 
 
Long-term loan is an unsecured loan from the subsidiary for use in the operations. This loan is repayable within 

December 31, 2010 however on February 9, 2007 the Company repaid Baht 27.5 million of the loan. 
 
Directors and managementûs remuneration 
The Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and management 

for the year 2007 totaling Baht 12.9 million (the Company only: Baht 12.4 million) and for the year 2006 totaling Baht 12.4 
million (the Company only : Baht 12.4 million). 
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9. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND UNBILLED RECEIVABLES 

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007  2006 
Trade accounts receivable - related parties     
Trade accounts receivable - ship repair 1,127,563 15,121,998 1,127,563 15,121,998 
Total  1,127,563 15,121,998 1,127,563 15,121,998 
Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties      
Trade accounts receivable - ship repair 50,134,928 30,363,885 50,134,928 30,363,885 
Trade accounts receivable - ship building 1,297,730 1,369,750 1,297,730 1,369,750 
Trade accounts receivable - landing charge 505,886 487,473 -  - 
Trade accounts receivable - Service 829,167 -  -  - 
Total  52,767,711 32,221,108 51,432,658 31,733,635 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (16,785,125) (5,383,848) (16,297,652) (4,896,375) 
Net  35,982,586 26,837,260 35,135,006 26,837,260 
Total trade accounts receivable - net 37,110,149 41,959,258 36,262,569 41,959,258 
 
The outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are aged, based on due date, 

as follows: 
(Unit: Baht) 

 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007  2006 
Age of receivables     
Not over 3 months 37,442,081 21,352,963 36,612,764 21,352,963 
Over 3 months to 6 months   572,500 9,358,294 572,500 9,358,294 
Over 6 months to 12 months -  8,925,924 -  8,925,924 
Over 12 months 15,880,693 7,705,925 15,374,957 7,218,452 
Total  53,895,274 47,343,106 52,560,221 46,855,633 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (16,785,125) (5,383,848) (16,297,652) (4,896,375) 

Net  37,110,149 41,959,258 36,262,569 41,959,258 
 

          As at December 31, 2007 the Company has balances due from trade accounts receivable of approximately Baht 16.3 
million (As at December 31, 2006: Baht 7.2 million) which were overdue for along time. These accounts have been under a 
following-up process and the Company expects to collect most of the balances. The Company has set aside an allowance for 
doubtful accounts of approximately Baht 16.3 million (As at December 31, 2006: Baht 4.9 million). 

As at December 31, 2007 approximately Baht 148.2 million of an unbilled receivable - unrelated party relates to the 
collateral obligations arising as a result of the transfer of rights of claim over collections from a project customer to secure 
specific purpose credit facilities obtained from a bank as described in Note 28.7. 
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10. UNBILLED RECEIVABLES/UNBILL PAYABLE 

(Unit : Baht) 
  The Company Only 
  For the years ended as at December 31, 
  2007      2006 
Contract revenue recognized in the period  235,902,941 105,233,335 
  The Company Only 
  As at December  As at December   
  31, 2007 31, 2006 
Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized profit 341,136,276 105,233,335 
Advance received  48,256,652 67,718,565 
    
Gross amount due form customers for contract work as an asset 121,057,577 45,652,318 
 Gross amount due to customers for contract work as a liability -  67,718,565 
  121,057,577 (22,066,247) 
 
11. INVENTORIES 

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007  2006 
Raw materials 101,822,941 93,681,341 101,822,941 93,681,341 
Semi - raw materials 596 802,233 596 802,233 
Work in process 13,138,908 901,123 13,138,908 901,123 
Total   114,962,445 95,384,697 114,962,445 95,384,697 
Less: Allowance for stock     

 obsolescence (1,773,077) (2,172,339) (1,773,077) (2,172,339) 
Net  113,189,368 93,212,358 113,189,368 93,212,358 
 
During in 2007, the company has capitalized portion of interest charge as part of work in process, approximately 

amounted Baht 2.13 million. 
 
 
12. WITHHOLDING TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE 
This represents the withholding tax deducted at source of the following years: - 

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated The Company Only 
  2007 2006 2007 2006 
2005  -  14,655,578   -       14,178,869 
2006  7,437,326  7,437,326 7,420,136        7,420,136 
2007  651,746  -  -                  - 

Total  8,089,072 22,092,904 7,420,136      21,599,005 
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The Company and its subsidiaries regard withholding tax deducted at source as an asset since they have the right to 

claim for refund of it.  However, the net realisable value of tax is subject to the exercise of the claim right by the Company and 
its subsidiaries, and to the Company and its subsidiariesû tax audit by the Revenue officials.  During the current year Deember 
31, 2007, the Company and its subsidiary received cash refund for withholding income tax for the year 2005 of Baht 14.7 
million. 

 
13. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 
 As December 31, 2007, these time deposits at financial institutions amounted Baht 55.08 million (December 31, 2006 : 

Baht 29.5 million) have been pledged with banks to secure bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company. 
 
14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER THE EQUITY METHOD 
These represent investments in ordinary shares in the following subsidiaries. 

(Unit: Baht) 
 The Company Only 

    Shareholding  Carrying amounts based 
 Companyûs name Paid-up capital percentage Cost  on equity method 

 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
 Million Million  Percent Percent 
 Baht Baht        

Investments in subsidiaries          
General Warehouse Ltd. 10.0 10.0 100 100 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,774,771 2,700,312 
Less Allowance for stock absolescence     (6,225,229) (7,299,688) -  - 
     3,774,771 2,700,312 3,774,771 2,700,312 
Asimar Marine Ltd. 5.0 37.5 100 100 4,998,200 37,485,000 8,212,106 40,002,045 
Ecomarine Co., Ltd. 25.0 25.0 80 80 19,999,300 19,999,300 2,958,270 7,997,708 
Less Allowance for stock absolescence     (9,975,601) (4,936,163) -  - 
     10,023,699 15,063,137 2,958,270 7,997,708 
             Total     18,796,670 55,248,449 14,945,147 50,700,065 

 
On January 31, 2005  the Company acquired an additional 10 percent equity interest of the shares of Asimar Marine 

Limited from other companies, at a price of Baht 3.75 million which paid up 25 percent of registered share capital. As a result, 
the Companyûs shareholding in the subsidiary increased from 90 percent to 100 percent. 

On September 29, 2005 and October 25, 2005  the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of Asimar Marine 
Limited approved a reduction in its registered share capital by decreasing the number of ordinary shares by 1,125,000 shares, 
whereby the former registered share capital of Baht 150,000,000, consisting of 1,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, was 
reduced to Baht 37,500,000, consisting of 375,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each. The subsidiary registered the share capital 
reduction with the Ministry of Commerce on April 21, 2006.  

During the fourth quarter of 2005 the Company acquired an 80-percent interest in the equity of Ecomarine Company 
Limited, a new subsidiary registered in Thailand on October 14, 2005. During in 2005 the Company paid up 25 percent of the 
shares, amounting to Baht 5 million, and during 2006 the subsidiary called up the additional 75 percent of the share value, and 
the Company has already paid in its contribution of Baht 15 million. The subsidiaryûs business is conducted in Thailand and its 
principal activity is the provision of pollution control and environmental management services. It commenced operations during  
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the year 2006. 
On September 14, 2006 and October 3, 2006 the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of Asimar Marine 

Limited approved a reduction in its registered share capital by decreasing the number of ordinary shares by 275,000 shares, 
whereby the former registered share capital of Baht 37,500,000, consisting of 375,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, will be 
reduced to Baht 10,000,000, consisting of 100,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each. The subsidiary registered the share capital 
reduction with the Ministry of Commerce on January 26, 2007. 

On July 3, 2006 and August 3, 2006 the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of Asimar Marine Limited 
approved a reduction in its registered share capital by decreasing the number of ordinary shares by 100,000 shares of Baht 100 
each, to consisting of 100,000 ordinary shares of Baht 50 each. The subsidiary registered the share capital reduction with the 
Ministry of Commerce on December 21, 2007. 
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Buildings of the Company and its subsidiary are erected on the land which the subsidiary has subleased under an 

agreement terminating in 2012. During in 2005, the Company has entered into a memorandum of agreement in respect of the 
sublease agreement, agreeing to extend the term of the sublease for another 25 years. 

The Company has mortgaged two floating dockyards with a total net book value as at December 31, 2007, of Baht 
108.3 million (December 31, 2006: Baht 117.3 million) and land and construction thereon with a total net book value of Baht 6.0 
million to secure credit facilities and loans obtained from financial institutions. 

As at December 31, 2007 motor vehicles and office equipment of the Company with a total net book value of Baht 0.4 
million (December 31, 2006: Baht 1.7 million) were under hire-purchase agreements with leasing companies. 

As at December 31, 2007 certain plant and equipment items of the Company and its subsidiaries have been fully 
depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of those assets amounted to Baht 98.3 million (December 31, 2006: Baht 107.7 
million) (The Company only: Baht 96.7 million, December 31, 2006: Baht 106.1 million). 

 
16. Intangible assets 

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated 
  Know-how    
  for use in   
  building   
  pollution   
 Leasehold right control ships Software Total 
Cost     
December 31, 2006 5,000,000 2,451,513 5,549,645 13,001,158 
Purchases -  2,355,140 87,000 2,442,140 
December 31, 2007       5,000,000 4,806,653 5,636,645 15,443,298 
Accumulated amortization     
December 31, 2006 3,958,333 194,503 2,796,628 6,949,464 
Amortization for the period 208,333 476,148 482,813 1,167,294 
December 31, 2007 4,166,666 670,651 3,279,441 8,116,758 
Net book value     
December 31, 2006 1,041,667 2,257,010 2,753,017 6,051,694 
December 31, 2007 833,334 4,136,002     2,357,204     7,326,540 
Amortization for the year 
2006    863,359 
2007    1,167,294 
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(Unit: Baht) 
 The Company Only 
 Software Total 
Cost   
December 31, 2006 5,538,976 5,538,976 
Purchases 87,000 87,000 
December 31, 2007 5,625,976 5,625,976 
Accumulated amortization   
December 31, 2006 2,794,150 2,794,150 
Amortization for the period 480,680 480,680 
December 31, 2007 3,274,830 3,274,830 
Net book value   
December 31, 2006 2,744,826 2,744,826 
December 31, 2007 2,351,147 2,351,147 
Amortization for the period   
2006  458,045 
2007  480,680 
 
 
17.  BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS / 

TRUST RECEIPTS 
(Unit: Baht) 

 Interest rate Consolidated The Company Only 
 Percent per annum 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Bank overdrafts  MOR 11,299,182 1,693,507 11,150,612 1,593,030 
Short-term loans from       
financial institutions 4.85 - 5.45   70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000 70,000,000 
Total  81,229,182 71,693,507 81,150,612 71,593,030 
Trust receipts  4.90 - 7.085 11,858,856 11,850,712 11,858,856 11,850,712 
 
Bank overdrafts, short-term loans from financial institutions and trust receipt facilities are secured by the mortgage of 

the Companyûs floating dockyards and land and construction thereon. 
As at December 31, 2007 remaining bank overdraft facilities amounted to approximately Baht 48.4 million (December 31, 

2006: Baht 58.0 million). 
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18. LONG-TERM LOANS 
(Unit: Baht) 

 Consolidated / The Company Only 
  As at September  As at December  
  30, 2007 31, 2006 
(1) Baht loan from a bank, with facility of Baht 181.5    
 million, at a fixed rate per annum for the first two years    
 and MLR per annum from October 31, 2005 onwards,    
 repayable 35 quarterly installments as from March 2005    
 to September 2013. 135,644,000 153,644,000 
(2) Baht loan from a bank, with facility of Baht 20 million,    
 at a fixed rate per annum for the first two years, and    
 MLR per annum from February 28, 2006 onwards,    
 repayable 42 monthly installments as from August 2004    
 to January 2008. 320,000 6,080,000 
Total  135,964,000 159,724,000 
Less: Current portion (18,320,000) (23,760,000) 
Net  117,644,000 135,964,000 
MLR: Minimum Lending Rate 
The loans are secured by the mortgage of the Companyûs floating dockyards. 
 
19. PROVISIONS 
These comprise the following: 

(Unit: Baht) 
 Consolidated/ The Company Only  
  2007 2006 
Provision for compensation claims from a ruling of an   
Arbitration Committee (Note 28.8) 4,061,928 4,061,928 
Provision for late delivery penalty  -  2,815,438 
Total 4,061,928 6,877,366 
 
20. SHARE CAPITAL  
During the year 2006, the holders of the 50.67 million warrants were exercised options to purchase 50.67 million 

ordinary shares at an exercise price of Baht 1 each, resulting in an increase in the Companyûs paid up share capital from Baht 
184.14 million to Baht 234.81 million. The Company received all payment of the additional share capital and registered the 
increase in its share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on March 23, 2006. 

On April 25, 2006 the Annual General Meeting of the Companyûs shareholders approved a reduction of the registered 
share capital from Baht 238,000,000 to Baht 234,810,100 since there are ordinary shares remaining after the exercised of the 
warrants. The Company registered the reduction of registered share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on May 9, 2006. 

 
21. WARRANTS 
On October 11, 2002  the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Companyûs shareholders passed  a resolution to issued 

119 million warrants for the purchase of the Companyûs ordinary shares, free of charge. The warrants, one of which entitles the 
holder to subscribe to one ordinary share  at Baht 1 each, are exercisable every 3 months, from April 23, 2003 to March 15, 
2006. 
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No warrant was exercised on March 15, 2005 and  June 15, 2005.  
On September 15, 2005,  27,679 warrants were exercised to purchase 27,679 ordinary shares, for   the total of Baht 

27,679. The Company registered the increase in its paid-up capital with the Ministry of Commerce on September 23, 2005.  
On December 15, 2005,  304,900 warrants were exercised to purchase 304,900 ordinary shares, for   the total of Baht 

304,900. The Company registered the increase in its paid-up capital with the Ministry of Commerce on December 23, 2005. As 
at December 31, 2005 a total of 53.86 million warrants remained unexercised. 

On  March 15, 2006  the expiration date of the warrants, 50.67 million warrants were exercised to purchase 50.67 
million ordinary shares, for a total of Baht 50.67 million. The Company registered the increase in its paid-up capital with the 
Ministry of Commerce on March 23, 2006. Therefore the unexercised 3.19 million warrants were expired.  

 
22. STATUTORY RESERVE 
Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a 

statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the 
reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. 

 
23. CORPORATE INCOME TAX 
Corporate income tax for year  2007, the Company has been calculated at the rate 30 percent on net earning under tax 

basis, after adding back provisions and certain expense which are disallowable of for tax purposes, and deducting the 
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous year. 

Corporate income tax for the year  2007, Subsidiary Company has been calculated at the rate of net earning under tax 
basis, after adding back provisions and certain expense which are disallowable of for tax purposes, and deducting the 
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous year. 

 
24. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in issue during the year. 
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued 
to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place 
either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued. 

Reconciliation between basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share is presented below. 
 Financial statement in which the equity method is applied 
  Weighted average  Earnings (loss) 
 Net income (loss) number of ordinary shares per share 

  2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
  Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Baht Baht 
  Baht Baht shares shares   
Basic earnings per share       
   Net income (loss) 18,463 (5,902) 234,810 224,840 0.08 (0.03) 
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares       
   Conversion of warrants -          -  -  3,224   
Diluted earnings per share       
   Net income (loss) of ordinary        
 shareholders assuming the conversion        
 of potential ordinary shares 18,463 (5,902) 234,810 228,084 0.08 (0.03) 
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 Separate financial statement 
  Weighted average  Earnings (loss) 
 Net income (loss) number of ordinary shares per share 

  2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
  Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand Baht Baht 
  Baht Baht shares shares   
Basic earnings per share       
   Net income (loss) 17,767 (1,217) 234,810 224,840 0.08 (0.01) 
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares       
   Conversion of warrants -          -          -          3,224   
Diluted earnings per share       
   Net income (loss) of ordinary        
 shareholders assuming the conversion        
 of potential ordinary shares 17,767 (1,217) 234,810 224,840 0.08 (0.01) 
 

There is no disclosure of diluted earnings per share in the financial statements for the years ended  December 31, 2007 
and 2006 as the diluted earnings per share is antidilutive. 
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25. FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT 
The Company and its subsidiariesû business operations involve 3 principal segments: (1) Ship repairing, (2) Ship building 

and (3) Engineering construction. These operations are mainly carried on in Thailand. Below is the consolidated financial 
information at December 31, 2007 and 2006 of the Company and its subsidiaries by segment. 

  (Unit: Million Baht) 
 Consolidated 
 For the years ender December 31,    

   Engineering  Elimination of  
 Ship repairing Ship building construction  inter-segment  
 segment segment  segment Other segments revenues Consolidation 
 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 
Revenue from external  
customers 396.2 399.9 268.0 105.2 0.2 7.2 6.2 1.8  - 670.6 514.1 
Inter-segment revenues 0.7 0.2 - 17.5 - - 38.1 32.8 (38.8) (50.5) - - 
Total revenues 396.9 400.1 268.0 122.7 0.2 7.2 44.3 34.6 (38.8) (50.5) 670.6 514.1 
Segment income (loss) 75.3 89.6 36.2 11.6 0.1 2.3 3.0 6.9   114.6 103.4 
Unallocated income and expenses:            
Interest income           1.7 0.9 
Other income           30.4 8.4 
Administrative expenses           (101.1) (99.8) 
Interest expenses           (13.9) (16.5) 
Corporate income tax           (14.8) (3.1) 
Minority interest            1.6 0.8 
Net income (loss)           18.5 (5.9) 
           Consolidation 
           2007 2006 
Property, plant and equipment 
 - net           362.45 348.20 
Unallocated assets           478.12 372.30 

Total assets           840.57 720.50 
Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 8. 
 
26. PROVIDENT FUND 
The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the 

Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Employees, the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to the fund monthly at the rate of 5 
percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited, will be paid to 
employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 amount 
totaling Baht 2.9 million and 3.0 million, respectively(the Company Only : Baht 2.8 million and 3.0 million, respectively)  
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27. DIVIDEND               
(Unit: Baht) 

 Dividends Approved by Total dividends Dividend per share 
Final dividends for 2005 Annual General Meeting  of the      
  shareholders on April 25, 2006 23,481,010 0.10 
 Total for 2006  23,481,010 0.10 
Final dividends for 2006 Annual General Meeting  of the      
  shareholders on April 24, 2007 11,740,330 0.05 
Total for 2007   11,740,330 0.05 

 
28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
28.1 Commitments relating to operating lease and service agreements 
The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into several lease agreements and a memorandum of agreement 

attached to a sublease agreement, in respect of land, condominium units and motor vehicles, service agreements relating to the 
staff bus service, hire of work agreement, and services agreements. 

 Future minimum rentals payable under these leases as at December 31, 2007 are as follows: 
(Unit: Million Baht) 

 Payable within: Consolidated The Company Only 
 1 year 10.04 7.88 
 2 to 5 years 12.99 2.52 
 Thereafter 73.56 - 
  Total 96.59 10.4 

 
 28.2 Commitments relating to ship building and ship repairing contracts 
As at December 31, 2007 the Company has undelivered and unrendered ship building and ship repair contracts totaling 

approximately USD 17.7 million , Baht 1.64 million and EURO 0.22 million, respectively. 
28.3 Commitments relating to ship building project 
 As at December 31, 2007 the Company had outstanding commitments of approximately EURO 1.3 million and USD 1.3 

million and Baht 37.2 million, in respect of agreements to purchase of goods and services for a ship building project. 
28.4 Letters of credit commitments 
 As at December 31, 2007 the Company had outstanding commitments in respect of irrevocable letters of credit 

amounting to SGD 0.11 million, USD 1.74 million and EURO 0.81 million. 
28.5 Guarantees 
 As at December 31, 2007 there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 36.17 million, USD 7.13 million 

and EURO 0.77 million which have been issued by banks on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance bonds as 
required in the ordinary course of business of the Company. 

28.6 Securities against credit facilities and loans as obtained from financial institutions 
 Credit facilities and loans obtained from banks have been secured by the mortgage of the Companyûs two floating 

dockyards and land and construction thereon. 
28.7 Contract financial facilities 
 As at December 31, 2007 the Company has been granted specific purpose credit facilities by a financial institution, 

which are secured by transferring the rights to make collection from a customer of the project. Detail of the credit facilities are 
as follow: - 

- Letter of guarantee facility of USD 13.4 million of which USD 6.03 million has been utilised. 
- Letter of credit and trust receipt facilities of not more than Baht 240 million (or in  equivalent amount in other currencies). 
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- FX Global Line facility of not more than Baht 440 million (or in equivalent amount in  other currencies), which Baht 
371.51 million has been utilised. 

- Revolving short-term loans of Baht 50 million, which has yet to be utilised. 
 

28.8 Litigations 
(1)  In July 2004, the Company was counter-sued by a customer, claiming compensation of approximately Baht 7.8 

million for breach of a ship building agreement. On May 19, 2006, the Company received a ruling from an Arbitration 
Committee ordering the Company to pay compensation amounting to Baht 4.1 million to the customer. The Company believes 
that the Arbitration Committeeûs ruling is in some respects contrary to the agreement and to the law, and during the third 
quarter of 2006 the Company has petitioned the court to overturn ruling, and the case is currently in court trial. However, for 
conservative purposes, the Company has already recorded provision for the above amount of compensation in the financial 
statements of the current year.  

(2)  In March 2005, the Company was sued by a company claiming compensation of approximately Baht 108.2 million for 
a breach of a joint venture agreement between the Company and that company which resulted in the termination of a ship 
repair agreement between the plaintiff and an employer. Subsequently, in May 2005, the Company counter-sued on the 
grounds that the management of the Company believes that the reason the above company terminated the contract was that it 
had breached the ship repair agreement with the employer and the amount of the damages to be claimed under the lawsuit 
has yet to be clearly determined. On October 30, 2006, the Court of First Instance delivered judgment dismissing the lawsuit 
and the Companyûs countersuit, with the court deciding that both parties have responsibilities to the employer and that these 
responsibilities can not be separated. However, the Company has appealed this judgment in December 2006. The case is 
currently being heard by The Appeal Court as at December 31, 2007. 

 
29. COMMERCIAL DISPUTE 
The Company delivered ships to the Department of the Navy in late 2000, which was beyond   the deadline stipulated 

in the shipbuilding contract, making the Company liable for a late delivery penalty amounting to Baht 68.7 million, for which 
the Company set aside a reserve amounting to Baht 14.5 million in its accounts for the year 2000 and recorded the difference 
of Baht 54.2 million between the reserve set aside and the actual penalty as expense in the year 2001. On February 9, 2004, 
the Company filed a dispute with the Arbitration Institute, seeking a refund of the penalty and the related interest at a rate of 
7.5% per annum. On July 11, 2005, an Arbitration Committee ruling ordered the Department of the Navy to refund Baht 14.4 
million of the penalty to the Company. The Company sent a letter to the Department of the Navy requesting the refund of such 
penalty, but the Department of the Navy refused to make such refund. On September 5, 2005, the Company filed suit with the 
Lower Administrative Court to recover the penalty from the Department of the Navy. On September 30, 2006, the Lower 
Administrative Court ordered that the ruling of the Arbitration Committee not be enforced. During the third quarter of 2006, 
the Company has appealed this judgment to the Supreme Administrative Court, and is currently awaiting the judgment of The 
Supreme Administration Court as at December 31, 2007. 

 
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
30.1 Financial risk management and policies 
The Companyûs and its subsidiariesû financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48 çFinancial 

Instruments: Disclosure and Presentationsé, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable and 
payable, loans, bank overdrafts, trust receipts, and short-term and long-term loans. The financial risks associated with these 
financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.  

30.1.1 Credit risk 
The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable, loans 

and other receivables. The Company and its subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting credit control policies and procedures, 
and therefore do not expect to incur material financial losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying 
amounts of receivables, loans and other receivables as stated in the balance sheet. 
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The Company is subject to concentrations of credit risk because the Company builds and repairs ships for general 
customers, in both the private and public sectors. The ability of these debtors to meet their obligations is sensitive to the 
health of the local economy. 

 
30.1.2  Interest rate risk 
The Companyûs and its subsidiariesû exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their cash at financial institutions, 

loans to / from subsidiaries, bank overdrafts, trust receipts, and short-term and long-term borrowings.  However, since most of 
the Company and its subsidiariesû financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are 
close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.  

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2007 classified by type of interest rates are summarised in 
the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity 
date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.  

 
 Fixed interest rates    
 Within 1 - 5 Over Floating Non-interest  Effective 
 1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate 
 (Million Baht) (% p.a.) 

Financial assets        
Cash and cash equivalent - - - - 0.1 0.1 0.5 
Trade accounts receivable - net - - - - 37.1 37.1 - 
Restricted bank deposits - - - 55.1 - 55.1 0.50-3.00 
 - - - 55.1 37.2 92.3  
Financial liabilities        
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans         
   from financial institutions - - - 81.2 - 81.2 4.85-5.45 
Trust receipts - - - 11.9 - 11.9 - 
Trade accounts payable - - - - 41.6 41.6 - 
Long-term loans - - -     136.0 -     136.0 MLR 
 - - - 229.1 41.6 270.7  

   
30.1.3  Foreign currency risk 
The Companyûs and its subsidiariesû exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading and service 

transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward 
exchange contracts when they considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within one year.  

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at December 31, 2007 are 
summarised below.  
  Financial Financial  Average exchange rate 
 Foreign currency assets liabilities as at December 31, 2007 
  (Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign  
    currency unit) 
 SG dollar - 0.17 23.5108 
 US dollar 0.26 0.31 33.8850 
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As at December 31, 2007 the Company has outstanding unbilled receivables amounting to USD 18.88 million under 

contracts made in foreign currency. 
As at December 31, 2007 the Company had outstanding forward foreign exchange contract for the purchase of USD 

0.054 million and EURO 1.92 million and the company had outstanding forward foreign exchange contract for the sale of USD 
19.10 million  

 
30.2 Fair values of financial instruments 
Since the majority of the Companyûs and its subsidiariesû financial assets and parts of their financial liabilities are short-

term in nature, and lendings and long-term loans borrowings have floating interest rates, the fair value of these financial assets 
and liabilities is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance sheets.  

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an armûs length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial instrument 
or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.  

 
31. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Companyûs Board of Directors on February 15, 2008. 
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